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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

4 785 41k 2

. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to HE-_Z-hAE+-_A=+—HItFENK

RMB915.2 million, representing an increase of 4.7% from RMB874.4 ABARKEIS2EET BT \FAR
million recorded in 2018. H874.4 BB TILEMNA. 7% °

. Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to e HE-_Z—NAF+-_A=+—HLEFEMNE

RMB443.9 million, representing a decrease of 2.9% from RMB457.0 FEBARKABIEE L B2 —\FAR
million recorded in 2018. MA57. 0B E LR 2.9% ©

. Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company for the e BHE_Z—NAF+_A=+—BHILEFEHK

year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB195.3 million, NEEBEDEAAREFNBAARE195.3
representing a decrease of 3.2% from RMB201.7 million recorded in BET BT \FARK201.78ETH
2018. 13.2% e

. The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of e EESESFH T - NFRNPBRKEEFTH
RMB6.8 cents per ordinary share for 2019. LiERARKE685 °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T AR B R

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last fve AEEBERBEFBFEENESE  EENBERE
financial years, as extracted from the published audited consolidated (fi$kE B A MK BEZG AP BHE L BRER)
financial statements and prospectus, is set out below: ERdlp N

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-AE —FN\F  —EtF —T-RF —T-h#F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR%TR

RESULTS E
REVENUE WA 915,170 874,410 803,141 831,149 798,861
Cost of sales SHEM AR (471,262) (417,448) (373,615) (385,453) (347,989)
GROSS PROFIT EF 443,908 456,962 429,526 445,696 450,872
Other income and gains HAb A KUz 15,429 11,652 19,755 8,426 11,875
Selling and distribution expenses 44 A& s4E L (96,086) (102,610) (110,985) (81,225) (75,073)
Administrative expenses THRAX (76,670) (74,747) (71,906) (83,065) (80,265)
Impairment losses on financial 4 Bl & ERIE &2

assets (1,512) (682) - - -
Other expenses HibfY (1,981) (4,523) (1,465) (1,271) (105)
Finance costs A KA (54,701) (50,427) (48,840) (40,606) (32,609)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R4 A 228,387 235,625 216,085 247,955 274,695
Income tax expense FTEBAX (33,093) (33,919) (29,310) (41,319) (46,167)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFIE 195,294 201,706 186,775 206,636 208,528

~. 2 2
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BENRES
As at 31 December
Rt+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-AEF T N\F —FtF —T-RF —T-hOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETRIT ARETT ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 3,983,120 3,711,471 3,415,754 3,164,133 2,298,666
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEH8E GIGPERELR  (1,507,541)  (1,381,915)  (1,262,124) (875,335)
TOTAL EQUITY iR 2,360,974 2,203,930 2,033,839 1,902,009 1,423,331

ZEMBEARLAR —T-NEFFR 03
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

= i el

It is a great honour for me, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of Honworld Group Limited (the “Company” or “Lao
Heng He”), to present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “we”) for the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

Business Review

We are one of the leading manufacturers of condiment products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). We offer high quality
and healthy brewed cooking wine as well as other condiments, including
naturally-brewed soy sauce, naturally-brewed vinegar, soybean paste and
fermented bean curd. In 2019, we attained the following achievements:

1. We were awarded the title of “Top 50 Enterprises in China’s Light
Industry Food Industry (FEI 8 T2 R R1TE R T8 %) by the
China National Light Industry Council (FF B # T % B & €); and
the“Top 30 Culturally Influential Enterprises of 2018 (2018 # ¥ 5k X
{E222 11> 305%) "in the 8th*Global Overall Rating List (ZRER4EFT
)"

2. Our “Rosy Wine Vinegar (¥ 3 K E&)” was listed in the first batch of
“Outstanding Intangible Cultural Heritage Tourism-related Products in
Zhejiang Province (/T & B FIEER T MG E)";

3. In the “13th China International Wine Expo Evaluation Campaign (8
T+ ZEPEBEEBEEESTEES)”, our “15% Cooking Wine (15
B % JH)” and our “30-year old yellow wine brewed from a recipe
dated back to the Song dynasty (7 77 30 F & &8 )” were awarded
the title of “Gold Award for Cooking Wine (B & #1 )& € %)’ and
“Qingzhuo Awards” for New Alcoholic Product (yellow wine) of the
year 2018 (2018 /& [ & W42 ] JB A% (BB 7)) respectively; and

4. We were listed in the 9th batch of High-skilled Talents (Model

Workers) Innovation Studio of Zhejiang Province (#T/ L& % Lt S+

BEAT (4515) B3 T4E=) by Zhejiang Federation of Trade Union (3

7I # T &) and Science Technology Department (£} £ £ fii B2) of

Zhejiang Province; and ranked as Grade 3A “Enterprise of Honouring

Contracts and Keeping Promise” (5F & [A] & 15 A 1 %) by Zhejiang
Administration for Market Regulation (AT T & MBEEEER) ;

5. The press conference of Group Standards for China’s Cereal-based
Brewed Cooking Wine (FF Bl 22 ¥ B & £ B E 88 1Z %) was
successfully held in Huzhou. By taking advantage of the press
conference, we ceremoniously introduced new products for
consumption by the catering channel.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

After the establishment of distribution channel, catering channel and
e-commerce channel (the “New Sales Channels”) over the years, our
sales channels have successfully covered 30 provinces, autonomous
regions and municipalities across the country with 1,321 distributors. Sales
contribution from distributors of the New Sales Channels has been
expanding year by year. The sales from the New Sales Channels increased
from RMB423.3 million in 2018 to RMB450.6 million in 2019, representing
a growth of 6.5%.

In 2019, with the successful transformation of our New Sales Channels, the
Company’s marketing resources were more evenly allocated between the
New Sales Channels and supermarket channels with synergy starting to
emerge. The sales from supermarket channels were still able to maintain
growth despite the general downward trend of the supermarket industry,
with its sales amount increasing from RMB451.1 million in 2018 to
RMB464.6 million in 2019, representing a 3.0% growth.

For the above reasons, as of 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a
revenue of RMB915.2 million (year ended 31 December 2018: RMB874.4
million), representing an increase of 4.7% as compared to the
corresponding period of 2018. The profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company was RMB195.3 million (year ended 31 December
2018: RMB201.7 million), representing a decrease of 3.2% as compared to
the corresponding period of 2018, mainly due to the change in our product
structure with an increase in the proportion of low-end products sales
which led to the decline in gross profit margin.

In 2019, cooking wine, our key product, remained as the major source of
our revenue, representing 67.0% of the total revenue (2018: 69.6%). With
the gradual release of our production capacity of soy sauce, sales of our
soy sauce products in 2019 increased by 31.1% compared with that in the
corresponding period of 2018 and accounted for 21.4% of our total
revenue. In view of the growing demand of our customers in the New Sales
Channels and the anticipated sales growth of soy sauce, rice vinegar and
fermented bean curd products brought by the further development of the
New Sales Channels, we consider that a rich and diversified condiment
products portfolio would be more beneficial to the business development of
the Group in the coming years. Thus, we will pursue in-depth development
for the industry chain of the Group’s condiment products at multiple levels,
thereby establishing Lao Heng He as a diversified condiment manufacturer
with cooking wine as a dominant product.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

= i ey (7))

Our profitability mainly depends on product pricing and our cost of sales,
marketing strategy and the product structure and mix. We are actively
monitoring any potential risk factors that may have impact on our financial
results, and trying to mitigate any upward pressure on costs and expenses
with more efficient operation, higher profit margins and better product mix
and sales channels. The Group faces certain risks in its business
development, including: (1) risk of significant increase in production cost,
such as increase in the prices of subsidiary agricultural products, packaging
cost or labour cost; (2) negative impact on our sales due to changes in
customers’ spending habits in condiment products; (3) the greater-than-
expected increase in cost from market expansion and selling expenses; (4)
the possible failure of our new products to obtain market recognition in the
short run; (5) higher complexity of sales policies and credit terms
management due to the gradual increase in the number of our distributors ;
and (6) market risk arising from the outbreak of novel coronavirus.

APPRECIATION

I'would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
Shareholders, Board members, management team and all our employees,
as well as our business partners and customers for their continuous support
and contribution to the Group.

Chen Weizhong
Chairman of the Board

15 May 2020
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEQO)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian
Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director

Mr. He Yuanchuan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shen Zhenchang
Mr. Ng Wing Fai
Mr. Sun Jiong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Wai Keung

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chen Weizhong
Mr. Au Wai Keung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Wing Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Jiong

Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. He Yuanchuan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Wing Fai
Mr. Sun Jiong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

v E R (%)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Sun Jiong (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Wing Fai
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Balidian Town

Food and Industrial Park
Wuxing District, Huzhou City
Zhejiang 313000, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 1303, 13/F

Hua Fu Commercial Building
111 Queen’s Road West
Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

o v E B (7)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Zhili Branch

No. 583, 587, 589 Zhenbei Road

Zhili Town

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province

PRC

Bank of China Limited

Huzhou Branch

No. 208, Renmin Road
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huzhou Branch

No. 88, Renmin Road

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG
LAW

Chungs Lawyers (in association with DeHeng Law Offices)
28/F, Henley Building

5 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Stock code: 2226
Board lot: 500 shares

WEBSITE

http://www.hzlachenghe.com

A /=
FEFRET
o B T T AR A T
e iy
o
AT M
o

Z H 583 « 587 5895k

PERITIR D B IR A A
N 21T

H

AT BN T

AR 20855

PR EIRITIRDBRAF]
SN 1T

e

e DARE=Dila\ Inv)

AR 8855

BREEE”M

BN E AT (BRI ERMER TS S
EBFIR

EFKERSHR

e KE281

TERNBFELTRE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EREZBERE

BEPREFBRLBERAA

&5
AT
ERRER183%

ARMPLT7E
17121716 5% 4

B A7 X8R

PRI R5E 2226
BEE BN - 5000%

493t

http://www.hzlaohenghe.com

ZEMBEARLAR —T-NFFR 09



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HELRSAEEANEEE

Below are brief profiles of the current directors (“Directors”, each a
“Director”) and senior management of the Group.

I o

UNTEHIAEBREES((ES])) LR EEEN

Date of appointment

Name Age Position as Director
HE Fie B BZEAREERH
Executive Directors
HITES
Chen Weizhong 48 Chairman of the Board, executive Director and 13 May 2013
chief executive officer
R & EEQER WOTESFKAERWITE —T-=fFhA+=H
Sheng Mingjian 45 Executive Director and vice general manager 17 December 2013
A2 WITEEREIELE —E-=Ft+ZH++H
Wang Chao 42 Executive Director and managing director of sales and 17 December 2013
marketing
T8 HWITEERIEERTISHEEE AL =+ -H++H
Non-executive Director
FHITES
He Yuanchuan 30 Non-executive Director 12 April 2019
AR EMITES —E-NEFWA+H
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Shen Zhenchang 73 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013
= BUIFITES —E-=F+ZH++H
Ng Wing Fai 61 Independent non-executive Director 29 June 2017
REE BUIFITES —E—tFXAZTNHAE
Sun Jiong 79 Independent non-executive Director 29 June 2017
#ia BUIFITES —E—tFXAZTNHAE

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HEHRLARBBEHANEERE (%)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weizhong (BR & &), aged 48, is the chairman of the Board,
founder, chief executive officer (“CEO”) of the Group and the executive
Director. He is primarily responsible for our Group’s overall strategic
planning, recipes use and control, distribution network expansion and
overall business operations. He has over 20 years of experience in the
condiment industry in the PRC and possesses unique information regarding
the research, development and intellectual property related to our products,
including the trade-secret recipes of fermentation starter and cooking wine
spices.

Mr. Chen started his career in the condiment industry as early as 1990 and
has accumulated extensive experience in the condiment industry since
then, especially in production, research and development, and sales and
marketing. Before founding our Group in 2005, he was the chairman and
general manager of Zhejiang Zhong Wei Brewing Co., Ltd. (“Zhong Wei”)
from 1995 to 2012. Mr. Chen completed a business administration advance
class at Zhejiang University (1)L A2 TR EE S AMHE ) in 2008.

Mr. Chen has been a member of the China Condiment Industrial
Association (7 Bl F¥K §2 1% &) since 2008. He is also the chairman of the
Huzhou Rice Wine Industrial Association (#/1| & /B % &) since 2012,

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (B2 83f#), aged 45, is our vice general manager and
executive Director. Mr. Sheng is primarily responsible for the management
of our Group’s financing activities and assisting Mr. Chen to manage the
overall business operations. He has more than 10 years of experience in the
condiment industry, and has extensive management experience in capital
and business operations. Before joining our Group in 2006, he was the
general manager of Zhong Wei from 2001 to 2006.

Mr. Wang Chao (£ #), aged 42, is our managing director of sales and
marketing and executive Director. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for our
Group’s sales and marketing. He has 15 years of experience in the
condiment industry. Mr. Wang joined Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewing
Factory (81 ZBFEEER) (currently Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewery Co.,
Ltd. (“Huzhou Lao Heng He”) in 1998 where he worked in various
departments, including business operation department and finance
department. Since 2006, Mr. Wang worked in management positions in
Huzhou Lao Heng He’s customer service centre and sales and marketing
department. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhejiang Electronic Polytechnic
School (#/ T4 EF T EE4R), a technical middle school in 1998.

HITES

BEBEE 48 AEFREE  AEEAK
A EREHAE (ERHAE ) RATES - B2
EHEAEEMEERIERE - BRHERKIZES -
TR R B - GES B ERS
R 20 FREE - BERRPESEBOH
% BERAMERTTREABRAN SEEES
BB BT B WS -

REEFE-NNZFOLEARRKRITE - AL
ERFARBITERIRELE  FRERME IR
HENRTMSHERETH)ERTEENER - AR =
ERRFERUAKEZA - BFR-ANAAFE-F
——FHMEENTPRBEERAE ([HK])H
TRERBELE - REENR_TTNFRRMIARE
THEESRIHEIINESR -

REEE-_FTENFEATERKRMBEHIKE -
mhE T —FREOAINEEGEEE

BORELLE 455 ARRMNBEEELRATE
FoRAETIZERERAEENMEGEH X
RELERERBERLE - RERAKRTEHRAS
10F&ER  YEEAREBZETHRELEENE
BACH - ER_TTRFEMAREBZAT > BN
ET-FE_FTTNFHRETRROBLRE -

IFRBELE 425 REMNBERTHERESAE
RENNTER  TAETBEARAKENHER
MIGHEER - WERKBITEHEB 15 FOHLR -
ERER—NANFIAAM Z BMEER (RE
HIMZEMEBEERAB(EMEBEND) - BN
A Z ERPI T - BIEEBEEMP RSB
Fle B ZZTRFR ERENAMEZENNES
R ODARHE RS EEBETEERS - £
FER—NANNFRER AP EFEXERNTE
BEFIESER-
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HELARKBEHANBEE (4)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. He Yuanchuan (ffjR)I), aged 30, is our non-executive Director and
a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. He has been a vice
president of Lunar Capital Partners IV L.P. (“Lunar Capital”) since October
2017. Lunar Capital is a leading private equity fund focused on investing in
China related consumer businesses and is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. He focuses on consumer and retail industry related
investment. Prior to joining Lunar Capital, Mr. He worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers Management Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (&
EKEEEEH(LF)BMRAF]) as a senior consultant from November
2012 to September 2015 and served as a project manager in Shanghai
Lujiazui International Financial Assets Trading Market Co., Ltd.* ( /&R
EEESMEER SN HRMDERAQF) from October 2015 to September
2017, and completed a number of strategic planning projects and capital
market transactions. Mr. He received a master of science degree in
accounting and finance in November 2012 from the Manchester Business
School of The University of Manchester and was admitted as a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants on 15 January 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Jt#& &), aged 73, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shen is also the chairman of the remuneration committee, and
a member of the nomination committee, and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Shen has more than 40 years of experience
in the cooking wine industry. From 1971 to 2006, Mr. Shen worked with
China Shaoxing Rice Wine Group (F BI%A El & 5L B B[R A 7)) (previously
known as Shaoxing City Rice Wine Corporation (43 #1 1 B & 42 2 a))).
Before his retirement from China Shaoxing Rice Wine Group in 2006, Mr.
Shen was the director of its office of general affairs.

Mr. Shen is a member of China Brewing Industry Association (rice wine
branch) (7 B B8 T 2 1% & = B % &), where he has been the deputy
council director and secretary general since 2000.

Additionally, Mr. Shen currently serves as a member of National Wine
Brewing Standard Technology Committee (£ BIEEBZEL BITEZE€), a
judge at the reviewing committee of China Alcoholic Drinks Association
Science Technology Award (4 BUE % 1 & &} 2 3% fi7 £2), and the deputy
director of the editorial board of China Rice Wine magazine ({# Bl = )).

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HEHRLARBBEHANEERE (%)

Mr. Ng Wing Fai (R % #&), aged 61, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Ng is also the chairman of the audit committee, and a member
of the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Ng has over 18 years of experience in audit, taxation
and consultancy in government and non-government institutes. Mr. Ng
holds a bachelor’s of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s degree of
arts in international accounting from City University of Hong Kong. He also
holds a bachelor’s degree with Honour in UK and Hong Kong law from The
Manchester Metropolitan University. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a past president
of the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors (2011), and a member of
the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Ng has been an independent non-
executive director of China Automation Group Limited (stock code: 569)
from June 2007 to October 2019, a company listed on the Stock Exchange;
and an independent non-executive director of Evergreen International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 238) since June 2016, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sun Jiong (%), aged 79, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Sun is also the chairman of the nomination committee, and a member
of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Sun is a senior postgraduate engineer. Mr. Sun graduated
from fermentation engineering profession of Wuxi Institute of Light Industry
(B HE T2 EP7T) in 1963. Mr. Sun served as an engineer and the topic
responsible officer (R 72 & & A) of the Food Fermentation Institute of the
Department of Light Industry of the PRC (71 BI#8 T 2 88 R 3B FT) from
1963 to 1979, and a senior engineer and officer of the Environmental
Protection Research Institute of the Department of Light Industry of the
PRC (9 B # T % #B 3z 35 4R # W 5T FT) from 1979 to 1988. Mr. Sun also
served as the deputy general manager of the Food Engineering
Technological Development Company (/B & &n T 3 £ iy f 2 42 2 7))
from 1988 to 1991 and the deputy general manager and senior
postgraduate engineer of China National Food Industry (Group) Corporation
(PEEMTE(EE)RAR]) from 1991 to 1997. He has also served as the
head of institute, professor and tutor of PhD students of the Food
Fermentation Industry Research Institute (#F Bl & G4 2 T 3 #f3tft) from
1997 to 2002. Mr. Sun has been the instructor of PhD students of Jiangnan
University since December 2001 and has also acts as part-time professor
of various universities including Zhongshan University, Shandong University,
South China University of Technology, Tianjin University of Science and
Technology and Shanghai University. Mr. Sun has been a senior consultant
of the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology (7 Bl & @ #l £4%
fiTE &) and a food safety expert of the State Food and Drug Administration
since 2002.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HELARKBEHANBEE (4)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE

Name Age Year joined Position

®E Fe MAFH B

Chen Weizhong 48 2005 Chairman of the Board, executive Director and chief executive
officer

BRIETR —ZTERF BERIRE BOEENERRTE

Sheng Mingjian 45 2006 Executive Director and vice general manager

LR —EEREF WITEENEILE

Wang Chao 42 2006 Executive Director and managing director of sales and marketing

T —EEREF WITEFENIEERTISHEEE FRKT

Wan Peiyao 48 2005 Director of production

BIER —TTRF HEREE

Liu Chuanli 39 2012 Financial controller

2E2 ZE—ZfF BT HaEs

Mr. Chen Weizhong (BR # &), aged 48, is the chairman of the Board, MBREBKLLE 485 AEFSXFE  BRATEN
CEO and executive Director. His biographical details are set out above HiTEE - W BEREFBHARAFREX[EER
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — &R EEABBE — 755 ] —fio

Executive Directors” to this annual report.

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (EXB8342), aged 45, is our vice general manager and BB %4 4555 ARFINEILLIENAITE
executive Director. His biographical details are set out above under the F - K7 BEREFBHRAFREX[ESTNSNE
section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — Executive IEAEBRERFE — Hi7ESE] —&0 -

Directors” to this annual report.

Mr. Wang Chao (E #), aged 42, is our managing director of sales and FEi#B%4E » 425%  ARFNEELMISHERESE
marketing and executive Director. His biographical details are set out above (EIBNMITE SR - H 2 BEEFBHNAFHR L=
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — EMSHREBRAERBE — HI17£F] —& -
Executive Directors” to this annual report.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HEHRLARBBEHANEERE (%)

Mr. Wan Peiyao (BIZ#), aged 48, is our director of production
department. He is primarily responsible for the Group’s production
management. He has more than 11 years of experience in the condiment
and cooking wine industry. Mr. Wan joined our Group in 2005, and has
worked in various departments including workshop operation department,
cooking wine production department and plant operation department. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Wan was the plant manager and executive
assistant to the general manager of Huzhou Ganchang Wine Company (7
I &7 & B % A BR A 7)) from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Wan passed the test for
first-class sommelier of PRC (B — #& & B &M) in December 2012,

Mr. Wan graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#7/T T ¥ K2
with a bachelor’s degree in industrial engineering (biochemistry) in 1995.

Mr. Liu Chuanli (21/£#8), aged 39, is our financial controller. Mr. Liu joined
our Group in July 2012 and served as the deputy financial controller of
Huzhou Lao Heng He, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and had
more than 11 years of experience in financial management. He obtained a
bachelors’ degree majoring in accounting and e-commerce from Hefei
University (& AEZ287%) in 2003.

BIEBAL 4858 REFMWAEEMNEIE -KRIE
BEASENEEER - FRAWRH REUETTRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

o P W w52 00

BUSINESS REVIEW E 3 3C1)

For details of our business review, please refer to the section on HEKFIESREZF1E B2 AFREIES
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 6 to this annual report. BRI IERE] 60 -

FINANCIAL REVIEW R JEI)

Overview e

The key financial indicators of the Group are as follows: AREBERTEEFEZWNT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEFE Year-on-year
2019 2018 Change
—E-hEF —ZT-)\F REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARET ARBT T %
Income statement items WEKRER
Sales e 915,170 874,410 4.7%
Gross profit EF 443,908 456,962 (2.9%)
Profit attributable to owners of RATIFEE AEIGHE
the Company 195,294 201,706 (3.2%)
Earnings before interest, taxes, BRAE - B8 - ITE KB HAT
depreciation and amortization FE((BRFE - HE -
(“EBITDA") wERBHEAFIE]) 342,533 328,801 4.2%
Earnings per share (RMB cents) FREF(ARES)
(note (a)) (FF5E (@) 33.7 34.9 (3.4%)
Selected financial ratios A L=
Gross profit margin (%) FEFIE (%) 52.3% (7.3%)
Net profit margin (%) FEAE TR K (%) 23.1% (7.8%)
EBITDA margin (%) BRALE S BIE - FTER
BRI K (%) 37.6% (0.5%)
Return on equity holders’ equity (%) A AR IR (%) 9.2% (9.8%)
Gearing ratio (note (b)) BEARBELE (D) 33.0% (3.6%)
Notes: BiRE

(@  Please refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements of this report  (a) HEEREFNWEE T % B2HARENGEESH
for the calculation of earnings per share. FHmRMITE12 -

(o)  The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net debtas (b)) RKRZZTE—NF+_A=+—H0 BEABELFIRF

at 31 December 2019. Net debt includes total debt net of cash and cash Bk EER FEBE FEBRELEEBR
equivalents. Total debt includes trade payables, other payables and accruals, BeERBECEEY BESREENESHIE &
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other non-current liabilities. fhFERT I R EETIER « TR IRITREMBEFAR

HipIER#aflE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B B i B A (7))

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by 4.7% from RMB874.4 million in
2018 to RMB915.2 million in 2019, primarily attributable to the growth
brought by the further development of the New Sales Channels and the
synergy effect from diversified channels.

Revenue from cooking wine products increased by 0.7% from RMB608.8
million in 2018 to RMB613.0 million in 2019, primarily due to the combined
effect of the increase in the sales volume of low-end cooking wine products
arising from the Group’s persistent enhancement on the market penetration
of New Sales Channels and the decrease in sales volume from mid-end and
high-end cooking wine as a result of economic decline.

Revenue from the Group’s soy sauce products increased by 31.1%, from
RMB149.5 million in 2018 to RMB196.0 million in 2019. This mainly reflects
additional sales brought forth by our expansion of production capacity of
soy sauce products.

Revenue from the Group’s rice vinegar products remained stable and
increased by 1.4% from RMB73.3 million in 2018 to RMB74.4 million in
2019.

While introducing new products to the market, we have also adjusted our
product portfolio of other products by reducing the production volume of
low-performing products this year. As a result, the revenue from the
Group’s other products decreased by 25.7% from RMB42.8 million in 2018
to RMB31.8 million in 2019.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales increased by 12.9% from RMB417.4 million in 2018 to
RMB471.3 million in 2019. The increase in cost of sales was primarily
attributable to the combined effect of growing revenue and rising prices for
packaging materials.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit decreased by 2.9% from RMB457.0 million in 2018 to
RMB443.9 million in 2019. The gross profit margin decreased from 52.3%
in 2018 to 48.5% in 2019, primarily due to the combined effect of rising
prices for packaging materials and an increase in the proportion of sales
from low-end products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

o DL i i B AT (A

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 32.4% from RMB11.7 million in 2018
to RMB15.4 million in 2019. Other income and gains primarily include
subsidies received, gains from sales of materials and interest income. The
increase in other income and gains was primarily due to the increase in
government subsidies received.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising expenses,
marketing expenses, promotion expenses, travelling expenses, and
remuneration of our sales employees.

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased from RMB102.6 million in
2018 to RMB96.1 million in 2019, and the distribution expenses as a
percentage of the Group’s revenue decreased from 11.7% in 2018 to
10.5% in 2019, primarily due to the combined effect from the following two
factors: (i) advertising expenses related to channel building were reduced
due to the maturity of our New Sales Channels; and (ii) the Group had
devoted more marketing resources to the supermarket channels to stay
competitive in unfavorable market environment.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by 2.6% from RMB74.7 million in
2018 to RMB76.7 million in 2019. The increase in administrative expenses
was due to the increase in salary of the Group’s management personnel.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by 8.5% from RMB50.4 million in 2018 to
RMB54.7 million in 2019. The increase in finance costs primarily reflected
the increase in interest expenses from RMB50.4 million in 2018 to RMB54.7
million in 2019 as a result of an increase in the lending rate.

Profit before Tax

Due to the aforesaid reasons, the profit before tax decreased by 3.1% from
RMB235.6 million in 2018 to RMB228.4 million in 2019.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B B i B A (7))

Income Tax Expense

The corporate income tax of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China has been provided at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the
taxable profits, based on the existing laws, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Pursuant to the approval from the National Office of Leading Group for
Administration of Hi-tech Enterprise Recognition, Huzhou Laohenghe
Brewery Co., Limited (/12 EFf1EEi& AR 2 7) and Huzhou Laohenghe
Wine Co., Limited (74N Z 1B F)E % 5 R A 7)), both being wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, were granted the “Advanced and New
Technology Enterprise” status and were entitled to the preferential tax rate
of 15% for three consecutive years commencing from 2019, which
remained stable as compared to that of 2018 (2018: 15%)).

Income tax expense decreased by 2.4% from RMB33.9 million in 2018 to
RMB33.1 million in 2019, mainly due to the decrease in profit before tax.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company decreased by
3.2% from RMB201.7 million in 2018 to RMB195.3 million in 2019, which is
mainly attributable to the decrease in net profit as a result of the aforesaid
reasons.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Company

Basic earnings per share decreased from RMB34.9 cents in 2018 to
RMB33.7 cents in 2019. The decrease in earnings per share was
attributable to the decrease in profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company.

Net Profit Margin

Net profit margin dropped by 1.8 percentage points from 23.1% in 2018 to
21.3% in 2019, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in gross
profit margin as a result of the aforesaid reasons.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

o DL i i B AT (A

FINANCIAL AND LIQUIDITY POSITION BB R RENE AR

Prepayments AT fklﬁ
Details of the Group’s prepayments as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are  ZN £ &R —NWER-_E—N\F+=-_A=+—H
as follows: RITER % IE¢| mE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z-\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARBTT AREETT
Prepayments for fixed assets ElEEEMNTENFKIE (i) 315,345 415,746
Prepayments for procurements of RES AR AV FE N R IE
condiment products (ii) 68,567 100,000
Prepayments for procurements of SREE R Y TR R IE
raw materials (i) 128,465 83,220
Other prepayments HE BT FIA 4,965 4,394

517,342 603,360

Less: Portion classify as non-current assets & : D8 AIERBEEN D (345,570) (415,746)

Current portion included in prepayments, 5+ AFERTEIE - EAbEWZIE &

other receivables and other assets HEMEERRE D 171,772 187,614

Notes: HMiEE

(i) Prepayments for fixed assets include (1) prepayment for the construction of () EFEEENTENZBEBIE) S _HME TREEMK

Phase Il plant premise amounting to RMB238 million. In the view of the HBARME38EHETT ° %%E{J?’% C TREEFHERZ
Directors, the construction is expected to commence the second quarter of TZ_TFF_TEHRA RQF_HHEMREEE
2020; and (2) prepayment for the associating production equipment for the ﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁmlﬁﬁj\ﬁﬁ% 773BET EEEHER
Phase Il plant premise amounting to RMB77.3 million. The Directors expect to B IIRTeh 18 ISR -
receive the equipment upon completion of the plant premise construction.
The directors estimated that RMB165,577,000 and RMB149,768,000 of the T E b i AR ¥165,577,000T & A R &
prepayments for fixed assets would be settled in periods of 12 months and 24 149,768,000 7T & [l 5& & B 19 T8 14 318 5 B #5748
months upon commencement of the corresponding construction/installation AR/ LTRIRMIE 1218 A R2418 A Nl
projects, respectively. Prepayments for fixed assets decreased by 24.1% from TR EFTEENENTER-_Z—N\EF+=A
RMB415.7 million as at 31 December 2018 to RMB315.3 million as at 31 =+ —BEMARKE4STEEBILR D24 1 %EZT
December 2019. The decrease in prepayments for fixed assets was mainly —NFT_A=F+—AMWARK3II53EET
attributable to the transfer of prepayment to construction in progress as a TAENENZEBORL I TERRERKRIEF
result of receipt of certain equipment during the year. Bl EBNREAERETIZNE -

(ii) Prepayments for procurements of condiment products primarily included (i) HEAKMOENTIETEaEIRBRRMEERT
prepayments for procurements of condiment products from an independent AT ADITEENKRERTEIRB Y E = HREEK
third party manufacturer under a poverty alleviation program led by China B RETENTIE - ARGEENTENZER
Development Bank Zhejiang Province Branch. Prepayments for procurements T \F+-A=Z+—HHARKI00EE LR
of condiment products decreased by 31.4% from RMB100 million as at 31 3A4%E_E—NEFE+-_A=+—HHAREKE686
December 2018 to RMB68.6 million as at 31 December 2019. The decrease BET HERVMENENTERD DEEHAF
in prepayments for procurements of condiment products was mainly AU EE F K BETE -
attributable to the receipt of certain condiment products during the year.

RMB38,342,000 and RMB30,225,000 of prepayments for procurements of BEEA R # 38,342,000 7T K& A K # 30,225,000 7T £
condiment products would be settled in periods of 12 months and 24 months AR BHEMNZ BRI S SRR ERE 7 M
according to the procurement schedule between the manufacturer and the RIERBEES R R D B 1218 A K 24 8 B RixsH o

Group, respectively.

(iif) Prepayments for procurements of raw material primarily included the (i) RERMANBNREIERENBE LS E{ji\ﬁgi

prepayments for procurements of raw materials from independent third party BERERMAMNENTE  URREELRHNETH
suppliers to ensure the steady supplies of agriculture products, which would FE - T LS AR 3 pE g B N £ [ 2 RS HY BR AR B F'EJ%%

be settled in a period of 12 months according to the procurement schedules 128 A Rt
between the suppliers and the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B B i B A (7))

Trade receivables

Trade receivables increased from RMB194.7 million as at 31 December
2018 to RMB254.8 million as at 31 December 2019 and the turnover days
of trade receivables increased from 67 days in 2018 to 88 days in 2019,
mainly reflecting the fact that the Group granted more favorable credit terms
with creditworthy distributors to build up long term business relationship
under current economic downturn. Details of the ageing analysis of trade
receivables are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
in this report.

We have implemented a multi-category distributor system to manage
distribution of its products since 2011. We classify our distributors into
Categories A (the highest), B, C and D based on their distribution scale and
capabilities.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2019 the Group’s inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB1,030,975,000 (2018: RMB983,423,000) and RMB265,838,000
(2018: RMB211,648,000) were base wine and base soy sauce,
respectively.

Inventories increased from RMB1,276.5 million as at 31 December 2018 to
RMB1,403.7 million as at 31 December 2019, primarily due to the increase
in work in progress. A substantial part of our inventories are work in
progress, mainly representing base wine, base soy sauce, semi-finished
soybean paste and base vinegar in the brewing period. Due to the long
production cycle and short sales cycle, we need to keep an abundant stock
of well-aged base wine to cope with the sales growth in the future.

We regularly monitor the inventory level maintained by our distributors. Our
sales representatives maintain frequent telephone or email communications
with each of our Categories A, B, C and D distributors, review their monthly
inventory reports and visit their warehouses on a regular basis. Our sales
representatives visit the warehouses of our Category A and B distributors at
least on a weekly basis and those of Category C and D distributors at least
on a monthly basis to ensure that they keep optimal stock level and our
products are sold to end customers within the shelf life. We generally
expect our distributors to maintain sufficient stock for 5 to 20 days of
supply. In the event a distributor maintains stocks of more than 20 days of
supply, the relevant sales representatives will assist such distributor in
marketing and promotional activities and suggest orders with a smaller
amount to be placed for the subsequent periods to minimize excess
inventory.

As at 31 December 2019, our inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB682.3 million (31 December 2018: RMB703.4 million) were pledged as
floating charge to secure general banking facilities granted to us.
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AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, our total borrowings amounted to RMB1,024.8
million (31 December 2018: RMB1,030.7 million), including finance lease
payables with a carrying amount of RMB28.0 million (31 December 2018:
RMB62.6 million).

Our principal sources of liquidity include cash generated from business
operation and bank borrowings. The cash from these sources are primarily
used for our working capital, the expansion of production capacity, other
capital expenditures and debt service requirements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank loans amounting to
approximately RMB466.5 million were not in compliance with certain financial
loan covenants. No further reclassification is needed regarding the rest of the
aforesaid bank loans since their maturity were all within 12 months and
have already been classified as current liabilities.

Foreign currency risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and its operations mainly settled in
Renminbi. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations of the Renminbi
exchange rate and give prudent consideration as to entering into any
currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate for hedging
corresponding risks. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
was not engaged in hedging activities for managing foreign exchange rate
risk.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, we had cash and cash equivalents of RMB410.1
million (31 December 2018: RMB345.2 million). As at 31 December 2019,
we had interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of an aggregate
amount of RMB1,024.8 million (31 December 2018: RMB1,030.7 million),
which were denominated in RMB with interest rates from 4.35% to 7.97%
per annum.

Our principal sources of liquidity include cash generated from business
operation, bank borrowings and other borrowings. We used cash from
such sources for working capital, production facility expansions, other
capital expenditures and debt repayment. We expect these uses will
continue to be our principal uses of cash in the future, and that our cash
flow will be sufficient to fund our ongoing business requirements.
Meanwhile, we have decided to further broaden our financing channel to
improve our capital structure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group was 31.8% as at 31 December 2019,
representing a decrease of 1.2 percentage points over 2018.

The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net debt
as at 31 December 2019. Net debt includes total debt net of cash and cash
equivalents. Total debt includes trade payables, other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other long term
liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitment as at 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB121.3
million (31 December 2018: RMB133.3 million), which was mainly related to
the construction projects for expansion of plant and increase of machinery.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, we did not have any material contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, our inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB682.3 million, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
RMB317.8 million, leasehold land with a carrying amount of RMB52.0
million, and deposits with a carrying amount of RMB67.0 million were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to us.

Except as disclosed in this report, we have not entered into any off-balance
sheet guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the payment
obligations of any third party. It does not have any interest in any
unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit
support to it or engage in leasing or hedging or research and development
or other service.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Company has no material acquisition and disposal as at 31 December
2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Our Group did not hold any significant investments during the year ended
31 December 2019.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The pandemic brought by outbreak of novel coronavirus has worsened the
already severe domestic and international economic situation, and raises
the public concern about the global economic outlook. For the condiment
consumer industry, the most direct impact of the outbreak of the pandemic
is the sharp decline in consumption in the catering industry and the increase
in the proportion of household consumption. The increase in household
consumption would gradually raise the sales volume from the supermarket
channel, so the supermarket channel that contributes more than half of our
sales is expected to grow to a certain extent in the future. As we rely on
small and medium-scale distributors who are more exposed to risks for
retailing our products in distribution channel and catering channel, the
pandemic will have certain adverse effects on our established distribution
channel and the catering channel still under development.

It is expected that the catering industry would enjoy rebounding
consumption after the pandemic and recover quickly. We believe that the
catering market will still continue to be the major market for condiment
consumption. In order to better expand into the catering market, we
launched more new products with a better value-for-mmoney and suitable for
catering market in 2019, such as 1.75L Lao Heng He Yellow Wine (1.75L %
fBFEA), 1.75L Lao Heng He Cooking Wine (1.75L & L), which
are popular in the market. We expect to continue to increase our investment
in the catering channel, so as to gain greater market share.

As for the cooking wine market, we believe that the cooking wine market
would be more regulated as a result of the implementation of the standards
applicable to brewing cooking wine, and pure brewing cooking wine
products will differentiate itself from the existing inferior products in the
market in terms of quality, and the superiority of our products in terms of
raw materials, years and wine quality will make our Company unique. The
cooking wine market has entered a stage of rapid development with both
volume and price, during which, enterprises with leading brands in the
cooking wine industry become more advantageous in terms of technology,
capital, market reputation and risk resistance capacity compared to small
individual businesses. With the deepening of food safety and environmental
protection measures, leading brands in the cooking wine industry will gain
more market shares. Intelligent enterprise production, product
sophistication and category diversification will be the main development
direction of brand enterprises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B B i B A (7))

As the trend prevails, our “Lao Heng He” brand products with excellent
brand recognition, modern traditional craftsmanship, advanced quality
control system and perfect product research and development system will
gain more market shares. We see product quality and technical content as
our core competitiveness, and strive to stand out in the market amid fierce
competition with outstanding product quality.

In addition to maintaining the leading position of our cooking wine products,
we will endeavor to adhere to our strategy of “Diversified” product structure
so as to meet the diversified market demand for green, healthy and tasty
condiment products. Furthermore, we will also keep expanding our
production capacity, expecting to enhance our overall profitability through
economy of scale.

As a result of the foregoing, we believe products of our “Lao Heng He”
brand will continue to grow in China.

GOALS AND STRATEGIES

Against the backdrop of keen competition and thriving development in the
condiment market, we will continue to pursue the “Diversification” strategy,
concentrating our investment and resources on New Sales Channels and
product supply. We will adhere to a consumer-oriented sales strategy and
endeavor to achieve higher customer loyalty. We focus on providing
consumers with safer and healthier naturally-brewed condiment products.

Our business goal is to consolidate our position in the condiments industry
by leveraging on our leading position in the cooking wine industry and our
strategy of diversifying sales channels. On one hand, we will further increase
the input in establishing the marketing team and staff training. On the other
hand, we will enrich the product structure of the Company and offer a
variety of high-quality products to cater for the consumption downgrade
and spending power of the general public. In respect of the expansion of
distributors, we will continue to cooperate with capable distributors through
our diversified channels, and continue to actively improve the market share
of our “Lao Heng He” brand in the PRC market.
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We will also actively promote products suitable for the catering market. By
holding various types of connoisseur sessions, such as Huzhou Culinary
Exchange Conference for SME Chefs* (3 M| /1 /N & 8k &F Al 32 7% €) and
Sino-Italian Michelin Night Festival (Hangzhou)* (F7 B 2K B ARE 2 2 78 (Fu M),
and sponsoring a variety of food fairs such as International Cuisine Culture
Exposition of Nanxun Ancient Town, China* (7 B &8 H B =R X1k
fBE &), more chefs will be able to understand and recognise our products,
thereby expanding our catering channels and promoting the sales of our
catering products. On the other hand, we have set up a sales team for
catering channel, and developed specialised catering distributors on our
own, and organised interactive marketing activities targeting catering outlets
in several cities.

We also actively build our internet sales platform and embrace “New Retail”.
By engaging internet live-streaming celebrities and filming TikTok clips, etc.,
our promotion has fully covered our market with various means. On the
other hand, we also strive to activate the linkage of social e-commerce and
the community and create a community distribution model for all shopping
guides.

We always pay close attention to and actively address any risks that may
arise from growth. In 2019, we continued to upgrade the digitalised
management system and officially launched an ERP system which would
enhance our control over our business processes and timely response to
the handling of information. Facing the outbreak of the pandemic, we would
enhance our control over our management of credit risks so as to address
the increasing credit risk brought by our distributors and the additional
management complexity. We will continue to build an information sharing
platform to strengthen internal communication in response to the negative
impact on sales and distributors caused by the difference in pricing policy in
different locations that leads to cross-sales of products to other exclusively-
authorised distribution areas.

“LLao Heng He” strives to become the first choice of consumers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
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EMPLOYEES AND WELFARE
CONTRIBUTION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 538 full-time
employees (31 December 2018: 605). The employees’ remuneration
packages are determined with reference to their experience and
qualifications and general market conditions. The remuneration policies,
bonus, evaluation systems and training programs for employees of our
Group were implemented continuously according to policies disclosed in
the 2018 annual report and no change has been made in 2019.

The total remuneration paid to the Group’s employees (excluding Directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB51.7 million (2018: approximately
RMB51.8 million), which included the Group’s contribution to the employee
benefit plan for the year 2019 of RMB6.4 million (2018: RMB8.5 million).
Details of the employee benefit expense are disclosed in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The following table sets forth the Group’s full-time employees by function
as at 31 December 2019:
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As at 31 December 2019
BE-¥-NF+-A=1-H

Number of
employees % of total
EEAZ hEHES
Production HE 272 50.7
Management and administration BB NITHERE 18 3.3
Sales and marketing HE N2 142 26.4

Quality control, research and development BEE - PR R EM

and others 106 19.6
Total @5t 538 100.0

The Group has designed an evaluation system to assess the performance
of its employees. This system forms the basis for determination of
employees’ salaries, bonuses and promotions. We believe the salaries and
bonuses that our Group’s employees receive are competitive with market
rates. Under applicable PRC laws and regulations, our Group is subject to
social insurance contribution plans, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance schemes.
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We place a strong emphasis on providing training to our employees in order
to enhance their technical and product knowledge as well as
comprehension of industry quality standards and work place safety
standards. We also provide regular on-site and off-site training to help our
employees to improve their skills and knowledge. These training courses
range from further educational studies to basic production process and skill
training to professional development courses for its management personnel.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year of 2019, the Group made charitable donations of RMBO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate AR FlHEFE AHIFEE RRE #IFSIZHEMDES
governance practices for enhancing accountability and transparency of the A& IIES ARG HEUREHE - EF2 R
Company to its investors and Shareholders. The Board and the ARQRIEEERENEHEENHFAHEEAERZE
management of the Company are committed to conducting the Group’'s 75 MEZHE RFDEE A ABNERE - &
businesses in a transparent and responsible manner, and they believe good &M %301k « Al FE XKL E - U RIEFAREREER
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for effective  (B{& 77 2t — (B~ ] sl ik 2 fE2R -

management, a healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and

enhancing Shareholders’ value in the long term.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (A) EEERESR
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the KRB ERABEBHERSERRAIFES
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the EmHA(EARER]) ([ LR B K&k
“Governance Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules TS CEEATARCES ARE(E
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong BT RTEASTRNEX  MEAERE R
Kong Limited (as amended from time to time) (the “Listing Rules”) BEHMESAEHENSTE -

as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has HE_Z—NLF+A=+—HLEFE &K
complied with the code provisions set out in the Governance Code RRIBEPEIRSTRIFTHE 2 SF A& - R
except the deviations as set out below in this report. WE TR 2 mEES AR o

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the REIREFSEENDGEERENR EF
Company with an aim to achieve and maintain a high standard of TR RERARARINER -

corporate governance practices.

(B) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR B) EEREREEB RS
MANAGEMENT’S SECURITIES 2
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities ARACRMBIIN LRSS+ 2 T EH
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model Code”) set BITABFETERR S 2RETAI] (1%
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct A ERAAFEFRARERRER
regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors B (A5 BB RBAE - HAAERER
of the Company and the Group’s senior management who, because ARRENANARESNRHEE)BAESE
of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess inside information AREEF Z1TRTA -

in relation to the Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that RABRARRE AAREBEFEIRSTR
they have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31 E_F-AFT A=t ALFECH
December 2019. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non- SPAREEST A o MO ADF AW EBERRNBE
compliance of the Model Code by the senior management of the TR AFT AT RLEFEARER
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019. RERERTAERITETAMTR
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(C) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS CEE3

30

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, including establishing and overseeing the Company’s
strategic development, business plans, financial objectives, capital
investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate
governance of the Company.

The Board gave their input and considered the priorities and
initiatives, aiming at developing a sustainable plan for the Company to
generate and preserve its long-term corporate values and to achieve
its business strategies and objectives.

The Board may from time to time delegate all or any of its powers
that it may think fit to a Director or member of senior management of
the Company. The Board has formulated clear and specific rules and
policies on such delegation of power to facilitate efficient operation of
the Company and is supported by three board committees together
the “Board Committees”, which are audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”) , remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”).

Directors must dedicate sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs. Besides, the Company also requested all Directors to disclose
to the Company annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
with an indication of the time involved.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance for all Directors in

respect of legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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Functions and Duties of the Board

The Board supervises the management of business and affairs of the
Company. The primary duties of the Board include:

(@ overall management of the business and strategic
development;

(b)  deciding business plans and investment plans;

(c)  monitoring the ongoing operation of the Company and to
ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
Shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests
of other stakeholders;

(d)  convening general meetings and reporting to the Shareholders;
and

(e)  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred by
Shareholders in general meetings.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility of daily
operations, business strategies and day to day management of the
Company to the CEO and the senior management.

The senior management, under the leadership of the CEO, is
delegated by the Board the authority and responsibility for the daily
operations and management of the Group. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions to be
entered by the Company.

Board Members

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Board consist of the following seven Directors,
including three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian

Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director
Mr. He Yuanchuan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. Ng Wing Fai

Mr. Sun Jiong

EEMBERR AT

EEENRERRBE
EFREEAAANEBREGOER - EF
ENEEREEE

(@) EBRREERMBBEE

b) REXRBEEINRZEE

© EEFATNFELE U RERLE
BT R B A BB R RER S - [
B VR B AR A T AR 2 O T35

(d) BFIRERKRERARER : K&

@ HWITERRRBERRELETHOHAME
N B REBE -

EFEHALFAREE XBRBELAE
ERZBENECHETEARMTELER
BEE -

EERHTENRET RRERERES
CHRAKERREERERENENREME -
PrEgiRBee X TEEB D EE Hinad - XA
RBERIMEFNEAR S 2/ HARBES
S -

ExERE
BHEZZ-NFT+A=+—HIEFEER
AEREY EFTAHAUTLREFEK
BRE=ZF2HTES  —BIFRTEER=S
B IFITES

BITES

REEEE (ZFEREFNTE)
BARELE

THxE

FUITESE
Al )1 S 4

BYFIITES
MIREEE
REBALE
bt

“T-NFFER

31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(CONTINUED)

38 i ol ()

32

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among the Directors of the Company.

An updated list of the roles and functions of Directors is maintained
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and the
Company shall keep updating whenever necessary. The details of the
Directors’ biographical information are contained in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy on 25 March
2014 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee will evaluate the balance and blend of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity experiences,
including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational
background, and merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
recognises the importance and benefits of the gender diversity at the
Board level and will take initiatives to enhance the gender diversity
among the Board members when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board appointments.

Director Nomination Policy

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination Committee
would review the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy in
achieving the objectives set for the benefits of the Company.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company at all times complied with the requirement of Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, which requires an issuer’s board of
directors to have at least one-third of its members being independent
non-executive directors. In addition, the Company has duly complied
with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, which requires
the issuer’s board must include at least three independent non-
executive directors and at least one of the independent non-executive
directors to have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

Mr. Ng Wing Fai, chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and
being one of the independent non-executive Director, possesses over
19 years of experience in audit, taxation and consultancy in
government and non-government institutions. Together with another
two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Shen Zhenchang and
Mr. Sun Jiong, all of whom have wide exposure and experience in the
cooking food industry and provide the Group with diversified
expertise and experience.

Their views and participation in Board and Board committee meetings
bring independent judgment and advice on issues relating to the
Group’s strategies, performance, conflicts of interest, management
process and to ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are taken
into account.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors on their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Board considers that each of them be independent. The Board
believes that the present structure of the Board can ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board and provide an effective
system of checks and balance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the Company.

The Board considers that the balance between executive and non-
executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of Shareholders
and the Group as a whole. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership. The Board has separate and independent
access to the senior management and the company secretary at all
times.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, are
clearly identified as such in all corporate communications containing
the names of the Directors.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term. The initial term of
office for each Director is a term of three years from their respective
appointment date and is subject to retirement by rotation at an annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) at least once every three years.
According to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation at each AGM provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the relevant
AGM. In addition, the Articles provide that any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment, whereas
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM. The Director
appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election at
the relevant general meeting.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting of the members convened
and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director at any
time before the expiration of his/her period of office notwithstanding
to the contrary in the Articles or in any agreement between the
Company and such Director.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles, Mr. Wang Chao, Mr. Ng
Wing Fai and Mr. Sun Jiong will retire from office as Director by
rotation at the forthcoming 2020 AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

The Company has regularly provided the Directors with information of
relevant training courses. Updates on the amendments of applicable
rules and regulations have been given to the Directors from time to
time. The Directors have provided the Company with a record of their
training received in 2019. A summary of the Directors participation in
continuous professional training for the year ended 31 December
2019 is as follows:
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seminars/ Reading materials/
conferences Regulatory updates
HEE NS mEEr
Name of Director EEnRE EHe % REEHER
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chen Weizhong PR A LA v 4
Mr. Sheng Mingjian EXRAE S v 4
Mr. Wang Chao FiBEA v 4
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Mr. He Yuanchuan RIS v v
Independent non-executive Directors HUIFHITEE
Mr. Shen Zhenchang TIRE LA v v
Mr. Ng Wing Fai Rt v v
Mr. Sun Jiong FET A v v

Internally, the Company’s senior management, including the executive
Directors, will implement a training plan and conduct training sessions
for its key staff members on a continuing basis. The Directors are
required to submit to the Company details of training sessions taken
by them in each financial year for the Company’s maintenance of
proper training records of the Directors.
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Governance Code, the Board
should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and under code
provision A.2.7 of the Governance Code, the chairman of the board
should at least annually hold meeting with the non-executive Directors
(including independent non- executive Directors) without the
executive Directors present.

A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings for 2020 has been
provided to the Directors. At least 14 days’ notice for all regular
Board meetings will be given to all Directors and all Directors must be
given the opportunity to include items or businesses for discussion in
the agenda. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice will be
given. Relevant agenda and accompanying Board papers will be sent
to all Directors at least three days in advance of every regular Board
meeting.

All matters and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed, will be recorded in minutes
of Board meeting or other Board committees meetings in sufficient
detail. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board/Board committee
meetings will be sent to all Directors/committee members for
comment and records respectively, within reasonable time after the
respective meetings are held. The final versions of these minutes are
kept by the Company secretary of the Company and are available for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director and auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board convened a
total of 6 Board meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting, 1
Nomination Committee meeting, 2 Audit Committee meetings, based
on the need of the operation and business development of the
Company. Besides, the Directors also attended the 2019 AGM,
which is the only general meeting held in 2019, to understand the
views of the shareholders.
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All Board members attended the said meetings in person or by
means via telephonic conferencing, which constituting presence at a
meeting as if he has been present in person under the Articles. The
Board intends to meet at least four times per year in the future, and
the chairman of the Board intends to hold at least one meeting per
year with the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board considers that
all meetings have been legally and properly convened in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations (including the Listing Rules and
the Articles). With the assistance of the company secretary, the
chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board meetings
and Board committee meetings are convened in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Articles, the terms of reference of the
respective Board committees and the Listing Rules. The Director’s
attendance at the Board meetings is set out in the section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings” below.

Upon making reasonable request to the Company, Board members
have the right to seek independent professional advice or services at
the Company’s expense to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving substantial
Shareholder(s) or Director(s) arise and the Board considers the matter
to be material, the Company will hold a physical Board meeting to
discuss and consider the matter, instead of passing a written
resolution. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no material interest in the transaction should be
required to be present at that Board meeting.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee
Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings, Board BEEHEN _E—NEETHE2IESS
committee meetings and 2019 AGM held during 2019 is set out as % EELZEEEEN_ZT—NFREE
follows. FREMBFEAEIIAT ©

Audit  Nomination Remuneration

38

Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee
meeting meeting meeting meeting 2019 AGM
“E-hE
gz E” RE 240 RRBEF
Name of Director EEHE 8% £E28E Z£E88E ZE8ER PN - |
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. Chen Weizhong BREBEE 6/6 TEA TEA TEA il
(Chairman of the Board) (BEE2xR)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BRELE 6/6 TEA TEA TEA il
Mr. Wang Chao TRk 6/6 Tk TEA TEA 11
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Ms. Qian Yinglan (resigned on BEEZT(R=2-NF 2/3 il ek TEA 0/0
12 April 2019) mA+ = BEHT)
Mr. He Yuanchuan (appointed on ARINEERZE-—NE 33 11 TEA TER 11
12 April 2019) MA+ZARZEE)
Independent non-executive Directors B 3E#7TEE
Mr. Shen Zhenchang mRELE 6/6 2/2 11 il il
Mr. Ng Wing Fai REBLE 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. Sun Jiong mEkE 6/6 2/2 11 il il
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Corporate Governance Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for fulfilling the following corporate
governance responsibilities:

o develop and review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and put forward recommendations to
the Board;

° review and monitor the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
regarding compliance with laws and regulatory provisions;

° develop, review and monitor code of conduct and compliance
manual for staff and Directors (if any);

° review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

° develop shareholder communications policy and regularly
review the policy to ensure its effectiveness.

(D) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Governance Code provides that the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and the CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Chen Weizhong (“Mr. Chen”) has continually served as both the
chairman and CEO of the Company since its incorporation. He is
responsible for managing the Board and the business of the Group.
Although this deviates from the practice in code provision A.2.1 of the
Governance Code, Mr. Chen has considerable and extensive
experience in the cooking wine industry and management in general.
The Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Company to
have an executive chairman so the Board can benefit from his
knowledge of the business and his capability in leading the Board in
discussing the strategy and long-term development of the Group.
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From a corporate governance point of view, the decisions of the
Board are made collectively by way of voting and therefore the
chairman should not be able to monopolize the voting result. The
Board considers that the balance of power between the Board and
the senior management can still be maintained under the current
structure and there is no imminent need to change the arrangement.
The Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committees also
regularly review the structure and composition of the Board and will
make appropriate recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining and implementing a high
standard of corporate governance practices.

Mr. Chen, as the chairman of the Board, is responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive in a timely manner, adequate information
which is accurate, clear, complete and reliable. He ensures that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings.
Mr. Chen is also responsible for ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures are maintained, all Directors make full and
active contribution to the Board’s affairs, and the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Under the leadership of Mr. Chen, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. Appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication between the Shareholders and the Board.
Mr. Chen will ensure appropriate steps are taken and the
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board as a whole.

A culture of openness and constructive relations among Directors are
promoted within the Board, facilitating effective contribution of non-
executive Directors and ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive Directors.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Chen, the chairman of the
Board has met with the independent non-executive Directors (without
the presence of the executive Directors) once to discuss, and obtain
independent views of, the Board affairs.
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(E) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(F)

The term of Mr. He Yuanchuan, the Company’s incumbent non-
executive director, shall last for two years from 12 April 2019.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Delegation by the Board

The Board is supported by the Board Committees, and the Board
has delegated various responsibilities to the Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. All Board Committees perform their distinct
roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to public on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has provided the Board Committees with sufficient
resources and the Board Committees may seek independent
professional advice as and when required at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 17 December
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and the Governance Code. The Audit Committee currently
has four members, namely Mr. Ng Wing Fai, Mr. Sun Jiong, Mr. Shen
Zhenchang and Mr. He Yuanchuan. Mr. Ng Wing Fai, the Company’s
independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, and possess the appropriate
professional qualifications required under the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee has access to professional advice, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, financial control, internal
control and risk management systems of the Company, nominate
and monitor external auditor, oversee the audit process and perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board on an
annual basis.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee has
convened two meetings, with all members present in person or

through telephonic conferencing, during which the following works NEFez AN FEeE FILHE #17
were performed: THITIE -

Assessed the independence of the Company’s auditors;

Discussed with external auditors about the scope of work and
fees in respect of their audit work for the year ended 31
December 2019;

Met with the Company’s external auditor to discuss the audit
procedures and accounting issues;

Reviewed and discussed the audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the unaudited interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 with the senior
management of the Company and external auditor;

Reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems of the Group;

Reviewed the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
other issues related to the Company’s accounting practice;
and

Appointment of external auditors (subject to AGM approval)
and arrangements for the employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties.

o FHERDFZEBENHBILIE

s HIEEHBIRAEBERBE_TFT
—NF+_A=+—HIFEERITE
MTHERERER

«  EARTNSNEEBIEE  HHEK
REREHEE

o HARRRRERERIMNERZEAENEE
MitwBE_2 - \F+-A=1+—H
LTFENRERFERENBE_ZF
—NFRA=ZTHIEREANREEZ
RHISRAS

o RAAKERMBEES - AEREH KE

RELER
o RIAKEARANETTERREBREA
RABFERNEMERT K

o RESNEREEN(CAERFBAFASH
) RZHHEBIRSH T ET RN -

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the BEZEZECNRESE RN AQ R KB R AT
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. RARULER] -

ERZBEEREHF LR ZBREN L
XHFREFehESZERSR] -

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the above
meeting is set out in the above section headed “Attendance at Board
and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 17
December 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules and the Governance Code. The Remuneration
Committee has three members, namely Mr. Shen Zhenchang, Mr. Ng
Wing Fai and Mr. Sun Jiong. Mr. Shen Zhenchang, the Company’s
independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has access to professional advise, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review,
determine and make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure of the remuneration (including bonuses and other
compensation) payable to the Directors and senior management,
assess performance of executive Directors, approve the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts and make recommendations
on employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to establish a
formal and transparent procedure for development of remuneration
policy, and ensuring no Director or his/her associate is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
will consult with chairman of the Board about the remuneration
proposals for the other executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company held one meeting in
2019 to review and make recommendations on the existing
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management. The
attendance of the Remuneration Committee members at the above
meeting is set out in the section headed “Attendance at Board and
Board Committee Meetings” above.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on websites of the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Governance Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

RIBERTRZTRIEXEBISER  BE=
E-NFH A=t HLFESREEE
BEZF I Bl 2 FEHEE ST

Number of Individual

HMERE(ART) A
Nil-1,000,000 Z£-1,000,0007C 5

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 17
December 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules and the Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Sun Jiong, Mr.
Shen Zhenchang and Mr. Ng Wing Fai. Mr. Sun Jiong, the
Company’s independent non-executive Director, has been appointed
as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee has access to professional advice, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
compositions to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying suitably
qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning of Directors. Furthermore, it also assesses the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting in 2019, during
which the diversity, structure, size and composition of the Board, the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for re-election at the
2019 AGM were reviewed and considered, and relevant
recommendation was made to the Board. The attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at the above meeting is set out in
the section headed “Attendance at Board and Board Committee
Meetings” above.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
takes into account the various aspects set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination Committee
discussed and agreed on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommends them to
the Board for adoption. The Nomination Committee considers an
appropriate balance of diversity perspective of the Board is
maintained. The Board Diversity Policy shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee annually, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee makes reference to certain criteria such as
the Company’s needs, the integrity, experience, skills and expertise
of the candidate, board diversity aspects and the amount of time and
effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities. External recruitment professionals might be engaged
to carry out selection process when necessary.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

(G) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor,
Ernst & Young, during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
below:

1056 B v el (7))
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The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors for
annual audit and non-audit services is reasonable. There has been no
major disagreement between the auditors and the management of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee is responsible to make recommendation to the
Board as to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of Emst & Young
as the Company’s external auditors for the financial year ending 31
December 2020 which is subject to the approval by the Shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held on 29 June 2020
(“2020 AGM”).

(H) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR

FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make
informed assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual report.
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() RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective risk management
and internal control systems and conducting regular review on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of
the Company. The risk management and Internal Control systems of
the Group are characterised by distinct division between power and
authority, clear procedures, high transparency and efficiency. The
Company has worked out a procedure for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks of the Company. Business departments
including the production and sales departments are responsible for
identifying, supervising and evaluating the risks related to themselves,
and report to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis.
The senior management shall evaluate and set priorities for the
identified risks according to the procedure set by the Board’s Audit
Committee, and then submit risk alleviation plans to the Audit
Committee which shall appoint officers responsible for risk
management.

The Company has formulated the insider information policies
according to the Securities & Futures Ordinance and the Listing
Rules. The Company’s Directors, senior management and all others
relevant employees are provided with the guidelines to ensure that
the Company promptly disclose the insider information under
reasonable and practicable circumstances. The guideline contains a
series of procedure to ensure that the information are kept
confidential before they are disclosed to the general public, and shall
publicly disclose such information immediately if the Company
considers that it is impossible to keep it confidential as required.

The risk management and internal control systems adopted by the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of
failing to achieve the business objectives and can only make
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, maintaining of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations. However, the system can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
misstatements or losses.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects.
Management of the Company provides all relevant information to the
Board, giving its members sufficient information and explanation that
it needs to discharge their responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee and
the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Company,
respectively including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Board considers that
there are no significant defects in the Company’s risk management
and internal control system in terms of completeness, reasonableness
and effectiveness.

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the
Board for its decision. The management team of the Company holds
meetings regularly to review and discuss with executive Directors on
daily operational issues, financial and operating performance as well
as to monitor and ensure the management properly implement the
directions and strategies set by the Board.

The senior management of the Company has provided the Board
with sufficient explanation and information to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before it for approval.

Currently, the Group has not established an internal audit function.
The Board has reviewed the need for setting up an internal audit
function within the Group, and is of the opinion that in view of the
current scale and nature of the operations of the Group, it is more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to carry
out internal audit services for the Group.

The Board will continue, with the assistance of the Audit Committee
and external independent professionals if necessary, to review and
improve the Group’s internal controls system, taking into account the
prevailing regulatory requirements, the Group’s business
development and the interests of shareholders.
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(J) COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Wai Keung (“Mr. Au”) served as the company secretary of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019. Mr. Au is a
director of Arion and Associates Limited, a corporate secretarial and
accounting services provider in Hong Kong. Mr. Au possesses the
professional qualifications that the Stock Exchange has considered
acceptable and has taken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Mr. Au’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Chen
Weizhong, the chairman, CEO and executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Au is responsible for providing advice to the Board on corporate
governance matters.

(K) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put
forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company (www.hzlaohenghe.com) and Stock Exchange after
each Shareholders’ meeting. The Articles allow a Shareholder to
attend and vote at a general meeting or to appoint a proxy, who
needs not be a Shareholder, to attend the meeting and vote thereat
on his/her/its behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons for
election as Directors, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or
the Articles. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders and potential investors are welcome to communicate
with the Company by email: ir02226@hzlaohenghe.com.
Shareholders may also put forward their written enquiries or
requisitions to the Board at Balidian Town, Food and Industrial Park,
Wuxing District, Huzhou City, PRC (Attention: the Board of Directors).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor relations
play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value, enhancing the
corporate transparency as well as establishing market confidence.
The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions. Updated key information and business development of the
Group are also available on the Company’s website to enable
Shareholders and investors to have timely access to information
about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through general meetings which
provides a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board. Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will
be available at the AGMs of the Company to address Shareholders’
queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure effective
Shareholders’ communication and transparency.
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There has been no change in the Articles since the Listing Date. An
up to date version of the Articles is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The 2019 AGM was an important occasion where the Board and the
Shareholders could communicate directly with each other. The
chairmen of the Board, the directors and the external auditor, Ernst &
Young, were present at the 2019 AGM to communicate with the
Shareholders. The 2019 AGM circular distributed to all Shareholders
before the 2019 AGM contained information regarding the proposed
resolutions.

In addition, the Company has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The Company will strive to strengthen investor relationships and
maintain transparency of the operating strategies, financial
performance and development prospects of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Policy on payment of dividend of the Company is in place setting out
the factors in determination of dividend payment of the Company, the
Company’s long-term earning capacity and expected cash inflow and
outflow, the frequency and form of dividend payments. The policy
shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for approval
if amendments are required.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

A

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 December
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company, and its subsidiaries established in the PRC are primarily engaged
in the manufacturing of cooking wine and other condiment products in
China under the “Lao Heng He” (“ Z18%1”) brand.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report and note 4 and note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
on pages 79 to 86 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB6.8
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 17 July 2020 (the “Proposed Final Dividend”). Subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on or around 29 June 2020 (the “2020
AGM”), the Proposed Final Dividend is expected to be paid on or about 21
August 2020.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

(A) For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and
Vote at the 2020 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 June
2020 to 29 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine the identity
of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, all
Share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant Share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 June 2020.

(B) For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed
Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 14 July
2020 to 17 July 2020, (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
Proposed Final Dividend, all completed Share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
13 July 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 3 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB772.9 million of which RMB39.4 million has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note 22 and note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would give rise to

disclosure obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2019.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during 2019.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian
Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director

Ms. Qian Yinglan (resigned on 12 April 2019)
Mr. He Yuanchuan (appointed on 12 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shen Zhenchang
Mr. Ng Wing Fai
Mr. Sun Jiong

Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles and the wishes of the Directors,
Mr. Wang Chao, Mr. Ng Wing Fai and Mr. Sun Jiong will retire from office
as Director by rotation at the forthcoming 2020 AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The Company’s circular to be dispatched
to Shareholders will contain detailed information of the Directors standing
for re-election.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 10 to 15 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors (including those Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2020 AGM) has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries, as applicable, within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under notes 16.1 and 16.2 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

No contract of significance (as defined under notes 15.2 and 15.3 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management members of the
Group are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation
given by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits, retirement
benefit scheme contribution) paid to the Company’s Directors in aggregate
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 were approximately
RMB1,252,000 and RMB1,707,000, respectively.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, retirement benefit
scheme contribution) paid to our Group’s five highest paid individuals in
aggregate for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 were
approximately RMB744,000 and RMB1,379,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no emoluments were paid by our
Group to any director of the Company or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 8 and note 9 of the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for the year ended 31 December 2019 by our Group to or on
behalf of any of the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors nor the controlling Shareholders of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competed or was likely compete with,
either directly or indirectly, the business of the Group.

On 8 January 2014, Mr. Chen Weizhong and Key Shine Global Holdings
Limited (the “Covenantors”), and the Company (for itself and as trustee for
each of its subsidiaries) entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Non-
competition Deed”), pursuant to which each of the Covenanters has
irrevocably, jointly and severally given certain non-competition undertakings
to the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries). Details
of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders — Non-competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus.

The Covenantors declared that they have complied with the Non-
competition Deed. The independent non-executive Directors have
conducted such review for the year ended 31 December 2019 and also
reviewed the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the Non-
competition Deed has been fully complied.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company maintained Directors’ liability insurance to protect them from
any loss to which the Directors of the Company might be liable arising from
their actual or alleged misconduct.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence as at the end of the year or at any time during 2019.

LOAN OR GUARANTEE FOR LOAN
GRANTED TO THE DIRECTORS

Save as the Advances disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected
Transaction and Related Party Transactions” of this report below, during
2019, the Group had not made any loan or provided any guarantee for any
loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior management, its ultimate
controlling Shareholders or their respective connected persons.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of the associated corporations, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2019
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Number of the Company’s
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Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares capital

LERANG

2BITRA

Name of Director EERSR 51 Rty HERDEE BMABE D

Mr. Chen Weizhong PR A Interest in a controlled corporation™® 283,018,750 48.90%
22 1] 2K [ A e ()

Beneﬂmal owner 2,682,000 0.46%

EmfA A

Note: These shares are held by Key Shine Global Holdings Limited (“Key Shine”).
The entire issued share capital of Key Shine is owned by Mr. Chen Weizhong.
Mr. Chen Weizhong is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Key
Shine under SFO.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
31 December 2019, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company has any interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company and or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
each of them has taken or deemed to have taken under the SFO) or which
will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which will be required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 or the period following
31 December 2019 up to the date of this annual report, was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or holding company or any of the subsidiaries of
the Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors and chief executive, or their spouse and children under the age of
18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during such period.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as are known to the Board, the following
parties (other than any Directors or chief executives of the Company) were
recorded in the register, kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Sharesof HZZZ—hF+ZA=+—BHRAELQ

the Company as at 31 December 2019 ARG REERD ZHFE
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued Share
Nature of interests Shares held capital®
RN
BRITRAE
Name g/ B ERtME FERGEAR [ NER Al
Key Shine Global Holdings Limited? Key Shine Global Holdings Beneficial Owner 283,018,750 48.90%
Limited® EmlEA
Ms. Xing Liyu® MR ELZ L@ Interest of spouse 285,700,750 49.36%
[IRLErE
Huzhoushi Wuxingqu State-owned Assets MR ER BB EAEE  Person having a security 229,424,000 39.64%
Supervision and Administration Services EIE R L@ interest in shares (note 4)
Centre® EERNEREZ AL (BFzE4)
Huzhou Wuxing Chengshi Touzi Fazhan WINRE TR EEESE  Person having a security 229,424,000 39.64%
Jituan Youxian Gongsi® BRAR® interest in shares (note 4)
EERNEREZ AL (BFsE4)
Wuxing City Investment HK Company REIE (FB)BR DAY Person having a security 229,424,000 39.64%
Limited® interest in shares (note 4)
BEERNEREZ AT (BFsE4)
Mr. Xie Zhikun REELE Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
corporation (note 5)
ZEHEEER (BFzE5)
Hwabao Overseas Markets Investment FEE o BTSN E 25 Beneficial Owner 72,625,000 12.55%
No. 2 QDII Single Unit Trust Plan 32-8 Z7532-8 B QDI & — EEEAA (note 5)
AefEtatE (KIzE5)
Chongging Zhongxin Rongbang Investment & E d Tt AR E R0 Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Center (Limited Partnership) (BER&#%) corporation (note 5)
ZEHEEER (KIzE5)
Chongging Zhongxin Rongchuang EERHRAKREBRAT  Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Investment Limited corporation (note 5)
TG EEER (BFzE5)
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Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
Number of issued Share
Nature of interests Shares held capital®
BARATE
BRITRAE
Name wE/ERB BHEME BRERBHE LS ER AU
China Innovative Capital Management RHTELAIE RNEIREPR /AT Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Limited corporation (note 5)
T EEER (GEY)
Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng Capital TR ERHEAREE Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Management Limited BRAF] corporation (note 5)
Rt EER (BT 5)
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited Natural Seasoning Beneficial owner 60,000,000 10.37%
(formerly known as China Seasoning International (HK) Limited ~ Ezm#EA A (note 6)
International (HK) Limited) (B1%% A China Seasoning (KFzEB)
International (HK) Limited)
Natural Seasoning International Limited Natural Seasoning Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
(formerly known as China Seasoning International Limited corporation (note 6)
International Limited) (778 A China Seasoning X% EE E# (CiEE9)
International Limited)
Lunar Capital Partners IV LP Lunar Capital Partners IV LP  Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
corporation (note 6)
T EER GET)
Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP Lunar Capital Partners IV GP,  Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
LP corporation (note 6)
REthEEER (FifsE6)
LCM-IV General Partner Ltd. LCM-IV General Partner Ltd.  Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
corporation (note 6)
T EEER (GET)
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The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 578,750,000
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

The entire issued share capital of Key Shine Global Holdings Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Weizhong.

Ms. Xing Liyu is the spouse of Mr. Chen Weizhong. Under the SFO, Ms. Xing
Liyu is deemed to be interested.

Key Shine Global Holdings Limited charged 229,424,000 Shares in favour of
Wuxing City Investment HK Company Limited pursuant to a share mortgage
deed dated 2 April 2019. Wuxing City Investment HK Company Limited is
wholly owned by Huzhou Wuxing Chengshi Touzi Fazhan Jituan Youxian
Gongsi (1)1 R FL 4 7 1% & 2 R & B A R 2 7), which is wholly owned by
Huzhoushi Wuxingqu State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Services Centre (/N R EE B A & RNEEERRHH L) Therefore, each
of Huzhoushi Wuxingqu State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Services Centre and Huzhou Wuxing Chengshi Touzi Fazhan Jituan Youxian
Gongsi is deemed to be interested in the 229,424,000 Shares which Wuxing
City Investment HK Company Limited is interested in.

These Shares are held by Hwabao Overseas Markets Investment No. 2 QDII
Single Unit Trust Plan 32-8 (¥ o /N5 E 257 71 32-8 BIQDI E—&
% {5 7t & 2/ ( ("Hwabo Trust’), which is entrusted by Chongaing Zhongxin
Rongbang Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (B i #7 &l R E H 0
(BREA%)) (“Chongging Zhongxin (LLP)”), which is managed by
Chongaing Zhongxin Rongchuang Investment Limited (EEF #TELAIR A B
fR 2 A]) (“Chongqing Zhongxin”). Chongging Zhongxin is controlled by China
Innovative Capital Management Limited (FF#BlEI'E AEEE R2AF)) (“China
Innovative Capital”), as to 95.00%. China Innovative Capital is controlled by
Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng Capital Management Limited (1t /8= 5 & A&
I HPR A F) (‘Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng’), as to 99.98%. Beijing Zhonghai
Jiacheng is controlled by Mr. Xie Zhikun as to 99.00%. By virtue of the SFO,
each of Mr. Xie Zhikun, Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng, China Innovative Capital,
Chongging Zhongxin, Chongging Zhongxin (LLP) is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Hwabo Trust.

Theses Shares are held by Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited.
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Natural Seasoning International Limited, which is a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is majority owned by
Lunar Capital Partners IV LP. Lunar Capital Partners IV LP, a Cayman
exempted limited partnership managed by Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP (as
sole general partner), which is managed by LCM-IV General Partner Ltd. (as
sole general partner). By virtue of the SFO, each of LCM- IV General Partner
Ltd., Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP, Lunar Capital Partners IV LP and
Natural Seasoning International Limited is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited.
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Save as disclosed herein, our Directors are not aware of any person who
will, as at 31 December 2019, have an interest or short position in Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to our Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or be directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other member of our Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
was aware that any other persons/entities (other than any Directors or chief
executives of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company, its members of the Group or
associated corporations which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which had
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 13.3% (2018: 12.8%) of the Group’s total revenue. The
Group'’s five largest customers accounted for 39.7% (2018: 42.1%) of the
Group’s total revenue.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for 35.3% (2018: 36.0%) of the Group’s total purchases. The
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 75.9% (2018: 67.0%) of the
Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any of their
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest suppliers or the Group’s five largest customers during the
reporting period of 2019.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 538 full-time employees, as
compared to 605 employees as at 31 December 2018. The Group enters
into employment contracts with its employees to cover matters such as
position, term of employment, wage, employee benefits, liabilities for
breaches and grounds for termination. Remuneration of the Group’s
employees includes basic salaries, allowances, bonus and other employee
benefits and are determined with reference to their experiences,
qualifications, competence and general market conditions.

The emoluments payable to the Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service agreements
as approved by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. No Director should determine his or her
own remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individual in the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(“MPF Schemes”) registered under the Mandatory Provident Scheme Fund
Ordinance. The contributions represent contributions payable to the MPF
Schemes by the Company in accordance with government regulations.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
retirement benefits schemes based on a certain percentage of their payroll
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
retirement benefits schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

Contributions paid or payable for these retirement benefits schemes for the
year of 2019 are approximately RMB3.9 million (2018: RMB4.0 million). No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by
the Group in future years.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In August and December 2019, the Group made certain advances with
maximum amount outstanding of RMB700,000 to Mr. Chen Jinhao, the son
of Mr. Chen Weizhong, as advance funds, which were fully repaid to the
Group within five days. On 25 December 2019, the Group made certain
advances with maximum amount outstanding of RMB3,000,000 to Zhejiang
Zhongwei Brewery Limited, a company significantly influenced by Mr. Chen
Jinhao, as advance funds, which were fully repaid to the Group within three
days (collectively the “Advances”). In the Advances, the Group collected
interest at an annualised rate of 4.35% according to the general bank loan
terms, which amounted to a total of RMB1,000. Such interest has been
fully collected in 2020.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company confirmed that it had complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of its connected transactions during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that other related party
transactions disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements of this annual
report did not fall or were fully exempted under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may be)
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and hence are not required to comply
with any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company places high value on its corporate governance practices and
the Board firmly believes that a good corporate governance practices can
improve accountability and transparency for the benefit of the Shareholders
of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Governance Code as its own code to
govern its corporate governance procedures. The Board also reviews and
monitors the practices of the Company from time to time to maintain and
improve a high standard of corporate practice practices.

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 51
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the Governance
Code in the year ended 31 December 2019. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 29 to 51 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE OF EXTERNAL
AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditor to ensure true objectivity in the consolidated financial
statements. All services provided by the external auditor are required to be
approved by the Audit Committee. To ensure that the policy of restricting
the non-audit work done by the external auditor is strictly adopted by all
entities within the Group, appropriate policies and procedures have been
established for approval of engagement of the Group’s independent
external auditor, Emst Young, to provide services to the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group pursues a “diversity” strategy, aiming to provide customers with
better quality, healthy and safe natural brewing condiments products on the
basis of win-win cooperation with suppliers and employees. During the year
ended December 31, 2019, the Group strictly complied with relevant laws
and regulations, continued to improve our internal management system,
and passed the OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certification to fully protect employees’ occupational
health and safety. By increasing investment in team building and employee
training, the Group provides employees with competitive remuneration
packages and social security. The Group also continuously improves
employee communication and transparent promotion mechanism to provide
employees with a fair working environment while enhancing employees a
sense of belonging.

The Group is well aware of the importance of partnership and customer
relationship maintenance in the development and is determined to become
the preferred brand for consumers. On one hand, the Group actively
establishes a long-term cooperative relationship based on the principle of
responsible procurement to ensure a stable supply of raw materials. On the
other hand, the Group has enriched products’ structure, launched more
high-quality products that meet customers’ needs, and cooperated with
powerful distributors to actively increase the market share of our “Lao Heng
He” brand, market influence and customer loyalty. The Group always pays
close attention to and actively responds to the feedback and suggestions
from suppliers and customers, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
there were no significant or major disputes with our suppliers and/or
customers.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Group commits to take
environmental, social and governance responsibilities. The Group also
adheres to the motto of “Perseverance combined with good-naturedness
and creditworthiness” (EAFF 2 + A5 A7), taking “Guarantee food safety,
promote environmental protection and promote consumer health” as the
driving force. The Group pays attention to its impact on employees,
customers, suppliers, distributors, governments, communities and the
environment, and does its best to help the sustainable development of
regions, industries and society. In addition, the Group always adheres to
corporate citizenship, maintains close communication with all stakeholders,
closely links corporate strategy, management systems, business operations
with sustainable development, and is eager to advance into the next century
with our ambition.

Actively Perform the Environmental, Social and
Governance Responsibility

As a leading brand in Chinese cooking wine industry, the Group actively
undertakes the responsibilities of environment, society and governance
besides providing high-quality products. The Group formulates a series of
environmental, social and governance policies and systems at the business
operation level and ensures the compliance operation and contribution to
sustainable development through the top-down management and bottom-
up feedback ESG governance structure. During the reporting period of
2019, there were no violations of environmental, social and governance
laws and regulations or any significant negative impacts on the environment
and society.

In terms of environmental protection, the Group strictly abides by national
and regional environmental laws and regulations and continues to improve
internal environmental management systems such as Environmental
Protection Management and Resource and Energy Control Regulations.
The Group has obtained ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
Certification. Through process optimization, technological innovation,
equipment transformation and other measures, the Group has implemented
and followed up the energy saving and consumption reduction target,
promoted green plant and lean management. At the same time, the Group
adopts intelligent online monitoring system to control energy and resource
consumption and strives to improve resource and energy efficiency and
reduce the impact of operations on the environment.
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In terms of social value, the Group not only ensures the flavor and quality of
products, but also actively promotes the formulation of product industry
standards to promote the healthy development of the industry, so that
consumers can eat at ease. The Group takes product quality and food
safety as the core, follows the ancient brewing formula and process, strictly
follows the “ Comply with the weather, adapt to the earth’s atmosphere,
use materials cleverly, suitable for the process” (KE#  ihER « MEE -
T AT13) four elements. During the reporting period of 2019, the Group has
established a food safety self-inspection team in accordance with the
requirements of ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification and
ISO 22000 Food Safety Management System to ensure the quality and
safety of products in various links, including raw material acceptance,
product production, product delivery and transportation. The Group is
working with partners to protect intellectual property rights, cracks down on
corruption, and support the healthy development of the social economy.

Initiative Disclosure of Environmental, Social and
Governance Information

The Group proactively discloses environmental, social and governance
information in accordance with the requirements of the Guidelines for
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. In the forthcoming fourth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, the Group will disclose the details of environmental, social and
governance information related to the business operations of the Group
during the reporting period of 2019.

The Group cares about the interests of stakeholders and understands their
views and expectations through multiple channels. The opinions and
suggestions will be the reference of developing long-term strategies for the
future.

For more information on the environmental, social and governance aspects
of the Group in financial year 2019, please refer to the fourth environmental,
social and governance report to be released by the Group. The report is
also available in and can be downloaded from our official website upon its
publication.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, so far as known to the Directors, there was no non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations which would have a
material impact on the Group.
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Impact of new coronavirus pneumonia epidemic

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) since January 2020 in
Mainland China have brought disruptions to the Group’s operation. The
consequential precautionary and control measures released by the local
government and authorities have temporarily stunt the logistics activities
across the country which has once stagnated the Group’s supply chain and
delivery.

The Group’s production has been gradually resumed from February 2020.
And the extent of pandemic prevention and control measures have been
gradually released responding to the request from the local government.
However, given the dynamic nature of the circumstances and the
uncertainty of the duration of the pandemic and the situation of pandemic
preventive measures, up to the date of the report, the assessment of the
related impact on the Group is still in progress.

AUDITORS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2019, it was
approved that Ernst & Young, Hong Kong was re-appointed as the
International and PRC auditors of the Company respectively for the year
2019, and the Board was authorised to determine and approve their
remunerations. The Company has not changed its auditors in any of the
preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

There was no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Weizhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 May 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

P>
EY::

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Honworld Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Honworld Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
79 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

35 37 A BB (B

FARETFTSEEmw

Key audit matter

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRBENEREETDROMESEH

Existence for inventories

FHEFE

The Group has a significant balance of inventories and needs
to maintain its inventories at an appropriate level to meet the
future market and production needs. As at 31 December
2019, the inventory balance of the Group was RMB1,404
million, representing approximately 35.2% of the Group’s
total assets. The majority of the inventories were base wine
amounting to approximately RMB1,031 million and base soy
sauce of RMB266 million, respectively. The existence of base
wine and base soy sauce could not be easily substantiated
via physical observation since it was massive in quantity and
this needs involvement of laboratory examination to validate
its chemical contents.

Therefore, this area was of higher assessed risks of material
misstatement and was identified as a key audit matter.

The related disclosures of inventories are included in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.
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We have performed the following audit procedures:

1. assessed the Group’s internal controls over the
inventories;

2. observed the Group’s physical stock-counts at the end
of the current reporting period which covered the major
types of the Group’s inventories, and randomly
selected certain inventory samples (the “Inventory
Samples”) during the observation and assessed the
laboratory examination results of the chemical contents
of the Inventory Samples from an independent third-
party examination agency (the “Laboratory Examination
Results”) engaged by us; and

3. assessed the results regarding the independence and
competence of industry experts from the examination
agency (the “Experts”), and with the assistance of the
Experts assessed the reasonableness of (i) the input-
output ratios of the Group’s base wine with different
alcohol levels and base soy sauce, which represented
the proportional relations that exist between input
volumes of raw materials and output volumes of base
wine and base soy sauce, and (ii) the Laboratory
Examination Results.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETFTSEEmw

Key audit matter

HREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRBNEREETTROMESH

Provision for inventories

FERE

The Group has a significant inventory balance and needs to
maintain the majority of its base wine at an appropriate level
for a period over one year to meet the future production
needs. We focused on this area because the determination
of inventory provisions involved significant estimation of the
net realisable values (the “NRV") of the inventories which
were influenced by assumptions concerning future sales and
usage and judgements in determining the appropriate level of
inventory provisions against identified surplus or obsolete
items.

The related disclosures of inventory provision are included in
notes 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We have performed the following audit procedures:

1. obtained analysis of the inventory provision prepared
by management and reviewed the key assumptions
used to determine the NRV of inventories as follows:

0} compared the estimation regarding the
expected future sales of inventories before their
expiry to the most recent sales prices and annual
sales rates; and

(ii) compared the estimates of production usage of
raw materials to the recent production records;
and

2. recalculated the expected provisions based on the

above key assumptions to assess the mathematical
accuracy of the calculation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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3 37 % B R (4

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

15 May 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

% B 16 i A

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —ZE—NF+ - A=1+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T ARBETFTT
REVENUE A 5 915,170 874,410
Cost of sales SHE R AR (471,262) (417,448)
Gross profit EF 443,908 456,962
Other income and gains HAD WA Yz 5 15,429 11,652
Selling and distribution expenses HE M AR (96,086) (102,610)
Administrative expenses THRAX (76,670) (74,747)
Impairment losses on financial assets SHMEERERRE 6 (1,512 (682)
Other expenses HmAx (1,981) (4,523)
Finance costs & R A 7 (54,701) (50,427)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B Al R 6 228,387 235,625
Income tax expense S Fifx 10 (33,093) (33,919)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRE 195,294 201,706
EARNINGS PER SHARE AAREEEEEFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhHERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted HAR R #E GERERATIEN  RMB34.9 cents
AR#33.7 5 AREE349 5
ZEMBEEERAR T NFFR 79



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ft 2 T WL i 3%

Year ended 31 December 2019 B E T —NFE+-A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-nE  —ENE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT ARETE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFH 195,294 201,706

Other comprehensive income that may be REZBBTEEHF2EZEEEN
reclassified to profit or loss in Htt2mus -
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of BMEGINEBHER =58

foreign operations 6,004
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZHKRHERE

FOR THE YEAR 197,864 207,710
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

S o B IR DL 3

31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T R ARBETFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR E 13 1,061,878 1,010,516
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT b R EROB 14(a) = 51,973
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(b) 55,245 -
Other intangible assets Hitm&E 15 1,045 414
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTRUR - M EKGRIE R
other assets Ef&EE 18 345,570 415,746
Deferred tax assets FEERIBEE E 24 4,741 3,905
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,468,479 1,482,554
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =8 16 1,403,731 1,276,502
Trade receivables FEWE 5 17 254,811 194,659
Prepayments, other receivables and TEfTFRIE - HAth FEYRIE 2
other assets Ef&EE 18 378,953 342,909
Pledged deposits EIERFER 19 67,039 69,659
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 19 410,107 345,188
Total current assets REBEERE 2,514,641 2,228,917
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables TENE 5 IE 20 78,587 113,326
Other payables and accruals H e sIE R EETIER 21 269,938 147,743
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 8 8R 17 & E b &K 22 918,141 932,762
Tax payable FE# T IA 81,067 51,977
Total current liabilities mEN B EERE 1,347,733 1,245,808
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,166,908 983,109
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBDESE
LIABILITIES 2,635,387 2,465,663
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

S o S B SIR DL A (BE)

31 December 2019 = E—hE+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NE  —TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P EE AR¥T T ARBTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t &R 17 & E b EFK 22 106,673 97,962
Other long term liabilities HEmRHAAE 25 136,948 137,046
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFTEE E 24 30,792 26,725
Total non-current liabilities B EELTE 274,413 261,733
Net assets BEFE 2,360,974 2,203,930
EQUITY ER
Share capital B& 26 1,767 1,767
Reserves E= 27 2,359,207 2,202,163
Total equity e R 2,360,974 2,203,930
Chen Weizhong Sheng Mingjian
PRIE A R
Director Director
EF =3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

% ME 1 52 B 3%

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE —E—NFE+-A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

VNS DN ]
Statutory  Exchange
Share Share Merger Capital surplus  fluctuation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
EE B

BA  RHEE  AHEE  EAREE  RHEE  KIREE  RENE  ExEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARSTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTT

(note 27) (note 27) (note 27)
(sror)  (Fsker)  (Wistor)

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—H—H 1,767 934,688 (1,000) 7,003 24,262 10,612 1,056,507 2,033,839
Profit for the year FRFIE - - - - - - 201,706 201,706
Other comprehensive income  FREMEZAKA
for the year:
Exchange differences related 2 EEINEFSH)
to foreign operations EHEE - - - - - 6,004 - 6,004

Total comprehensive income NG A KA B

for the year - - - - - 6,004 201,706 207,710
Final 2017 dividend declared  EER-Z—+ %
RS - (37,619 - - - - - (37,619
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+ZA=1+-H 1,767 897,069 (1,000) 7,003 24,262 16,616 1,268,213 2,203,930
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

o e AR 52 B A (BE)

Year ended 31 December 2019 EH = —NWE+-—A=+—HIL&E

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRBEEAELS
Statutory  Exchange
Share Share Merger Capital surplus fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
EE iz}

BA  RHBE AHEE EARE  BHRE  KBRE  REAR  EREE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARETR AR®T:R

(note 27)  (note27)  (note 27)
(Wafor)  (M&E2r)  (M&Een)

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F

+-A=+-H 897,069 (1,000) 16,616 1,258,213 2,203,930
Effect of adoption of FRS 16 4 Bl Bt F53R 452E 8|

EALE -2 (307) (307)

At1 January 2019 (restated) R =—E—hE—-F—R

(&) 897,069 (1,000) 16,616 1,257,906 2,203,623
Profit for the year FRFH = = 195294 195,204
Other comprehensive income £ R E A A UA :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBINEEN
translation of foreign EHESE
operations

Total comprehensive income WA KA LE

for the year 195,294 197,864
Final 2018 dividend declared ~ 2ER-E—/\F
RERE (40,513) (40,513)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NEF
+-A=1+—H 856,556* (1,000)* 7,003* 24,262* 19,186 1,453,200* 2,360,974
* As at 31 December 2019, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated — * RIE—NEFE+_A=1+—H ZEHEEBRES
reserves of RMB2,359,207,000 (2018: RMB2,202,163,000) in the consolidated AFBIRAR AN A FHHE AR 2359,207,000
statement of financial position. T(ZZ—\F : AR%2,202,163,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

Notes
P EE
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFTHHRESTE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 54 A AR
Adjustments for: BT SIRFE
Finance costs A& A A 7
Interest income A EYA 5
Depreciation e 13
Amortisation of other intangible assets BipEMEEEE 15
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/ ERABREENE TEREN L
recognition of prepaid land lease HENIE
payments 14
Impairment loss on trade EKE 55 IERREE R
receivables 6
Increase in inventories FEE M
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 FRIEE N
Increase in prepayments, TERTRUE - M EREIE R
other receivables and other assets HibEEE M
Decrease in trade payables B E SR ER L
Increase in other payables and accruals HAUpEA R IB L FESHTE B 180
Decrease in other long term liabilities EmEHaERD
Cash generated from operations EEBKENRS
Interest received 2HFE
Interest element of finance lease rental BMERERSROM B
payments
Interest element of lease liabilities HEAEMNEEHS
Mainland China tax paid B B A R IE
Net cash flows from operating activities RELEEHNFRERE
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, g -~ WE &&EIEE
plant and equipment
Prepayments for items of property, ERME - BE X
plant and equipment RAHIEE MFRIE
Additions to other intangible assets Hh A E 1 N 15

Decrease in pledged deposits EBEFRL
Net cash flows used in FARIEEEEH
investing activities FRERE

EEMBERR AT

,.mAiﬁéZ{Fii'%

AEF = A=TRHIEE

2019 2018
S N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFT
228,387 235,625
54,701 50,427
(1,856) (2,092)
57,550 41,473
153 -
1,895 1,276
1,512 -
342,342 326,709
(127,229) (86,571)
(61,664) (65,112)
(56,809) (151,638)
(34,739) (40,213)
95,658 57,008
(98) (133)
157,461 40,050
1,856 2,092
(2,058) (4,753)
(206) -
- (7,628)
157,053 29,761
(3,978) (108,478)
= (25,002)
(784) -
2,620 6,388
(2,142) (127,092)

—NEFR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

wAﬁ%fiﬁh)

Year ended 31 December 2019 B E T —NFE+-A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018

—2-hE —T-NEF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P aE AR®TR ARETT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHNRERE

ACTIVITIES
New interest-bearing bank and FTIEET B IRIT R EABE R

other borrowings 989,130 1,050,947
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BET BT R EMER

other borrowings (964,275) (935,550)
Dividends paid BT E (40,513) (37,619)
Interest paid BT A (52,437) (45,674)
Proceeds from finance leases BEHEFTSRIR - 20,000
Capital element of finance lease rental MEREHSNANES LY

payments (34,605) (59,482)
Principal portion of lease payments HeImreIo (364) -
Secured deposit placed for sale and RERERRSHTFARNEERTFR

leaseback transactions (11,500) -
Net advances from the ultimate holding B REEIER A B HF R

company 22,002 -

Net cash flows used in financing activities

ARRELHNFRDRE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [

RERREEEY
@i, Ghd) B8

FUORELRREEHEY

BB Y FE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REeENBESEEYWESRDS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

B o RIRTTHEER

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
cash flows

HARLRERMERT K
ReEEY
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(92,562)

345,188
2,570

410,107

410,107

410,107

(104,709)

443,893

6,004

345,188

345,188

345,188



1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4
December 2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
address is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year,
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”)
were principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of condiment
products under the brand name of “Lao Heng He” in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Key Shine Global Holdings
Limited (“Key Shine”), which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI").

EEMBERR AT

B A

31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

NEER
RARRRZE—ZF+_ANERERSE
EEPB2R2BZLRAE) (—NAR—FE=R
AR iR E B EREBESEMKILA
EHRREERAT « ARE M EEIA
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands

ARBB—HREEZERAF - FR - ARQF
REMBAR(GE [ ARE]) TERPEA
REMBE([HED#ETZEM] ERAKRD
HERFEEERT -

EEZRE AREERARRRKERADA
DREBREZES((RBRELZES]) MK
7 KJKey Shine Global Holdings Limited ([ Key
Shine]) °

“T-NFFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

bt 265 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2019 = E— A F+-_A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continuesy 1. A @& ¥
As 31 December 2019, the Company had direct and indirect interests R_E—NE+_A=+—8 KRFARE
in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited liability companies B ATTHEEE NEEEZ  ZEWSB
(or, if registered outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar NEIEEBILEER AT (HEREEEBINE
characteristics to a private company incorporated in Hong Kong). The o MEENESSMAKS 2L &R FEK
particulars of principal subsidiaries are set out below: HHRE) - EETEWNB AT FEEHY T :
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued/
establishment and registered Percentage of equity
Name place of operations share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
SMARL, R 2 BR17/
8 REEHE MR A EE ARREERER DL TEXH
Direct Indirect
E#% A
Lao Heng He Group Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
ZENEREERLFY B 18T REZK
Huzhou Chenshi Tian Niang Co., PRC/Mainland China HK$14,250,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Limitedo HE/HE R 14,250,000 7T products
HNREREEEERA RO R
Huzhou Cheng De Trading Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Limitedo mE/mER  ARE1,200,000,000 7T products
WNKEE S ERRE A0 FRm L E
Zhejiang Changxing Sanhetang PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Trading Co., Limited B/ E A AR#500,000,0007T products
MIRAE=AEEFHERRFE0 R
Zhejiang Changxing Hengze Trading ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited® B/ E A AR#150,000,0007T products
MIRREEZEL HERRREO R
Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB11,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Limited© HE /Rl R AR 11,000,000 7T condiment products
N EENEERRAR OO EERBERRR
Huzhou Laohenghe Wine Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB38,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Limitedeld HE/HE R AR 38,000,000 condiment products
N EENBEBRAR GO EERBERRR

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

@)

The financial statements of these subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst
& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

The statutory financial statements of the entity prepared under HKFRSs
were audited by Ermnst & Young, Hong Kong.

The statutory financial statements of these entities prepared under the
People’s Republic of China Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
were audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP).

©)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the laws of PRC.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

1.

2.1

EEMBERR AT
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31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

NEER @
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ZERBRBERRMEREERREEEY
BRREKEBELKSRMEBIEZ -
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@  REFEAREMAAIEBEDRSR -
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SEM BRI HEER ((ERMBRE
R | eEERMERSEL  BERe
FHER(TEFRE R 2R ) Mg REEAR
EPIRERERE - ZEHEAVBHRERTD
RIBELKABOIREMAK - BREAHADN
BRI ZEFBRRAARE((ARED
FId - MERAASBEDZEEREAONT

fiz o

o A S
:lV\IZIEL%

HEZZ-NF+ZA=T—BLEFENLK
BUBRREBIEARBLEMNE R (S &
£EDOHBHRER - WELREEARFE
ERREZEHNER(REEBLEER) - K
AEBRFBHEBEAENZAREURA
HEBOERN - WEHAREYREAEE
H¥em e (BRA RN EAEEER
EREEREHRNBMEE)  IRRES
i -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 = E—hF+—-_A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RBLEE 4

90

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

e EE )

WARRERAMERBEINREHRKS
BIRRR B RN R - A ARER T
HECHEHREUSNOENBEEE 1)
HEEERIER 81

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the (a) HEHEREURHMEEZFEANAHEL
investee; b7 3
(o) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and (o) EMEHNLHMEENES K&

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised standards for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,
IAS 12 and IAS 23

Amendments to IAS 28
IFRIC 23

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of IFRS 16, the
adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases
under a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17.

IFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where the
Group is the lessor.

EEMBERR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 = E— A F+-_A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
method with the date of initial application of 1 January 2019. Under
this method, the standard has been applied retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the
comparative information for 2018 was not restated and continued to
be reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use
of the identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17
and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that were not
identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property and land
use right. As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies
a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective exemptions for
leases of low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”)
(elected by class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and
interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AN D D ISC LOSU R ES (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 and included in
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The right-of-use assets
were recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard
had always been applied, except for the incremental borrowing rate
where the Group applied the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on IAS 36
on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position. This
includes the current and non-current portion of the land use right of
RMB56,173,000 that were reclassified from prepaid land lease
payment and prepayments, other receivables and other assets.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when
applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a
lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

EEMBERR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 @i HMERFENEE @
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BRE R EAERE165E — HE
(48)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as finance 1ELERIAN — T BEAREHER
leases HE
The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised MERDEAMERENTHEMS » N&EE
assets and liabilities at the date of initial application for leases TWTESEFNAEAEH 7 EEREERAE
previously classified as finance leases. Accordingly, the carrying BWYREEmEE - Rt FREEELREES
amounts of the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities at 1 BN _E—NF—HA—HBHNEREEARE
January 2019 were the carrying amounts of the recognised assets BB et ERE17THAENCEREENRE
and liabilities (i.e., finance lease payables) measured under IAS 17. B ERERMNZKIE) NIREE -
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 R-IE—NF—H—HBBEEZE
The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 RIZE—NF— A HRMEERTREE
was as follows: B 16ATEENFZNT
Increase/
(decrease)
#m, G d)
RMB’000
AR#EFT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets {5 P & EE 3 N 56,173
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments Taf LA EFUE R (61,973)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables TEfTFRIE - HAbEUGRIBE R b EE R
and other assets (1,270)
Increase in total assets BEBEL N 2,930
Liabilities aE
Increase in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFESRTT R EAMEE I 3,237
Increase in total liabilities B ELRFEE N 3,237
Decrease in retained earnings IRE R A 307

94 Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 @i HMERFENEE @
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EIFR B SR EERZE 1657 — HE
(&)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (Continued) R=F-NF—A—AHHBEZE &)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the operating RZF— ﬂi__ A-BMHERER_-TF
lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: —N\F+ZA=T - BENEEEEARNY
BRI -
RMB’000
ARBEFT
Operating lease commitments as at R-ZE—-NF+=-ZA=+—HH®
31 December 2018 REHERE 5,719
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at RZZE—NF—A—-B8NEFS
1 January 2019 E.E%?kﬂ 4.9%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at R-ZE—NF— A BREEHEAIE
1 January 2019 4,877
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and B BT HATE & I AR A AP
those leases with a remaining lease term ended RZE-NF+ZA=+—HzZHI
on or before 31 December 2019 RASRIEE B R (1,640)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-E-hFE—-—A—BNHESE 3,237
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EAMERRERNBEBRE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL TR & 28
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that REFBWRARZEGEMNBHERTERT
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated CEM B EARERZ F 5] R&IE 5T BB B 7%
financial statements. HEZER o
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business’ BREAEIRE ERIE I HEKMTE'
(1BFTAR)
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’ BRI TSR RIS - FUEREEHE
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 B SR 3958 K
Bl B I 3R 2R
F 75 (BFIA)
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEITSHRERRF105 KEFZHABENA
and 1AS 28 between an Investor and MER e ERE28E AL EPEZEC
its Associate or Joint Venture* (fB5TAX) EEHESTE
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BB RELRFE TSR REEA?
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material’ REEAEIRR EAMTE
and IAS 8 RETERIE SR
(1BFTAR)
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as ReHAERIZE 157 BEESEET
Current or Non-current® CHES) HIETE)
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 1 R_E-_FEF—-A—B 2 BHANFEL
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 2 Jl?z%%z:fif A—Hsiz %A FEE
5 45
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 3 ;Zi%{liiif A—Hs &R FEH
5
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 4 z;iﬁféigﬁ I A A B EAME RTAEER 4R
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact ANEFFTHEREREERITREEL
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the EREA RSB E c T4 KEEDR A -
Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs may result in W E T RS TERR B SR E A n] gg &
changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant Bt REBAEE T AN ANER
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position. RS E T BRI EATE -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made as at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHEREBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties Ezk iyl

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: AT AL #3518 A B AR E B A E

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (a) fWAUNTALTHZALRKEZAERNZ
and that person AL

() has control or joint control over the Group; ()  PZEHIR ARG AR

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEEEATEN %

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) RBRALEBEXALEEZFRFNFEE
Group or of a parent of the Group; EIEEKE

or B4
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) FRALAFE T EMGEHNESE :
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZELEASEBR-—SEHOK
group; EUNGIE

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (ii) ERAS—ER(XE—EENE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of nal - MEBARKRARMEB AR
the other entity); MBS NEIA B hE

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEBUEAAEERR-—SF=7H
third party; aEhE

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy BRERBFE-ZFBEMNAED
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ MBR-—BERAEZE=HEE

o)iitlNCI

(V)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZEEAALEEIE \Z'»“%.ﬁ?%
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity ENEEDES MFR AR
related to the Group; #mFIETE

(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (Vi) FZEEEH@@IBFIYIA TSI
identified in (a); EEH :

(viil  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over i) @O)EMINATHZEREESE
the entity or is a member of the key management RN BN AZERE (B ELN
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and BRARMFESEERKE &

(vil) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (i) ZEBIALEBEMAZKE [
provides key management personnel services to the AEBESAEE 2 FRARIREE
Group or to the parent of the Group. DEEABRL
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Machinery and equipment 5% to 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% to 33"/5%
Motor vehicles 20%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHEREBEw

100

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use right
Plant and machinery

33 to 46 years
2 to 15 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHEREBEw
ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued) HER-BE—-NF—B—B#&E
) u#)

Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBERFAMAEA (H)

(b)  Lease liabilities b) MHEERE
Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of REERGAE  AEEERIZHEES
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made NHEENFWBEFENHEAE M
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed ENMFeEEENZ(BEEME TN
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any FOMEEMERHEEERE  RERH
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that sSFRMEMAIERENIK - LAKRTEE
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be EFRHREBEERTIMNNESE -FHEN
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also RN BREAEBEASEEETFENEER
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably BEMNTEEMMEAERAREAERTT
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties R e BIRIEAEMESME
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group SN o NMKBRIEE A RO EHEE
exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments MR MRS ER LR
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an BIRNER AR -

expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group EERENZTOIRER  ARHEE
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease ESHFERLGHETET  WAERLHE
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the Fa H{EAEIESERFIR - E£FHB A
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement Hzik HEBEMNSEIEM  UR
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the BRA S 0 WA FEEN X - 1t
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. SN INREFEFEEN HEHREE - A
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured B REE) (N5 E IR 21 3| Y
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change ARBEENRED ) SEEHBEEREE
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments BEMNTHEE  BEFHI=HE8E
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in WEEEMS%E - AEENHEEB &S AL
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The BERITAEM &R -

Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets © HEHHEREEEEENHE
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption REEEPECPEEEIRNENERE
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is RN T EAE (BN EHIAH B
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from LHEMAEHA12EAARNAET
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase Mo SEERERE) - HNNERKER
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of BEMEWIARCNIERAREEN
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop NEERFIREKESE -

computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value R ENHENRREEBEEENA
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis ENHENZAHERRNIZE G AER
over the lease term. B -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease
payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss. The Group’s financial
assets included trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, pledged deposits
and cash and cash equivalents.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHEREBEw

104

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or
loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and other
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and other borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, due
to the ultimate holding company, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities and financial liabilities included in other
long term liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHEREBEw

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) =R |

24 FTEEHTHEBMEm

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted

/5,:,,..’]1/5&:1 (#)

EANBSRERN D HESEmARHBE
BEXPITHAREFPREHEABENDBS
—ER KEERUAEERTFNE KM
SR I AETT R E Bl B B 32 5 P I R G 3R R B

using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in
IFRS 15.

EMEW ARBEFE - EANEBSRER
C RASBIRHEAWH N EBE—F
Am%& HRER W R BIRRER N L
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Sale of goods HEEm

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time EEER WS TR EELSHEEBEER P
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on ZHEMECGRE AT N ERE) R -
delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide customers with R4 ﬁﬁéggﬁg HAYMEPIZMEER LI
rights of return and volume rebates. The rights of return and volume i@ﬂ] RERE LA E RN S| A ZR(E -
rebates give rise to variable consideration.

(a)  Rights of return (@ EEE
A

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return EANRRPIRETT A S THRNEYE
the goods within a specified period, the expected value method TE B AEERBEHEEEGSHETR
is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because eROMNER  AANT AZEFETAR
this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration EFEBWERMAERESE ANEFE
to which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in IFRS A s R E 15%}%5@%@@
15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are BE%\JT ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ SRENGET UEBEA RS
applied in order to determine the amount of variable R BRI ERBLEE - ,?ﬁ;i,ﬁﬂ;g@
consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For e AERRERET  MIEWA -
goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, a R EE TR gt A = P Uk B 2 SRR FE R
refund liability is recognised. A right-of-return asset (and the REVEE 7R (288 E R AN AR FE 3
corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised ) o

for the right to recover products from a customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sale of goods (Continued)
(b)  Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates
are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the expected future
rebates, the most likely amount method is used for contracts
with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method
for contracts with more than one volume threshold. The
selected method that best predicts the amount of variable
consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied
and a refund liability for the expected future rebates is
recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any
expected costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in
the value of the returned goods. The Group updates the
measurement of the asset for any revisions to the expected level of
returns and any additional decreases in the value of the returned
goods.

Refund liabilities

REEE 2R

ROEBEEZEMNEASEREEREFED
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A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all BERETABEEIL DK E I W (S EY)
of the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is = ﬂ%a’jf{iﬁﬁﬁ@ R AN EBESKTEH
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to HERRP; Liz Me&FEtE NEFENZRK
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund EHARFHEERRE T (RZ S5 ERGOEES
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at ) BfEEt -

the end of each reporting period.

Employee retirement benefits & ERMNRBEF

According to the rules and regulations of the PRC, the Company’s
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to contribute to a
state-sponsored retirement plan for all its PRC employees at certain
percentages of the basic salaries predetermined by the local
governments. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire retirement benefit obligations payable to retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual retirement
benefit payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions.

The contributions are recognised as expenses when the Company

RIBFEZRRFOER - NAREF B FEM
ZHBRBRRAREMBTIEE 2 BB EXH
EETHERMBETEREABRREREZR
REEIER - BIREB ZRKFTEIAE — 1)
B RARBERKENZEE %iiﬁm
o AEBHEREAEMNTRIEMCET
BRERANTERBEEMBEE -

ERANGIE) IETEZE’E{EE & A g

consumes the economic benefit arising from the service provided by RIGFTE A 7 K ENZSE R emR AH
an employee in exchange for employee benefits. X o
Early retirement and retirement benefits EEIRIK G IRIUKIEF

During the fiscal 2005 restructuring, the Group undertook the
expense related to both the retirement and the early retirement
schemes for the medical and social welfare of those early retired and
retired employees as of 30 June 2005. The Group recognised the
relevant estimated liabilities as well as charges in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss once the Group undertook the obligations.
These benefits are unfunded.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Employee retirement benefits (Continued)
Early retirement and retirement benefits (Continued)

Where these schemes fall due more than 12 months after the date of
the consolidated financial statements, they shall be discounted using
the appropriate discount rate, and carried at discounted amounts as
liabilities. The discount rate is determined using the yield rate of
government bonds with similar terms at the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

Actuarial gains or losses include the experience adjustment (the
impact of difference between the previous actuarial assumption and
actual results) and the impact of changes on actuarial assumption.
The actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income when incurred and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in a
subsequent period.

Interest expense is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and is derived from the discount rate determined at the
commencement of the retirement scheme within an accounting
period and the early retirement scheme multiplying with the average
present value over the entire terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHEREBEw

116

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation currency
of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the Company and the entity in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their consolidated
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Tax provision

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are made
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation and
practices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

(@)

(b)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the repair and maintenance of the asset, and
legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances. The carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made for
those identified obsolete and slow-moving inventories and
inventories with a carrying amount higher than net realisable
value. The assessment of the provision required involves
management’s judgement and estimates on which are
influenced by assumptions concemning future sales and usage
and judgements in determining the appropriate level of
inventory provisions against identified surplus or obsolete
items. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will have
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the write-
down/write-back of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type and customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

bt 265 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2019 = E— A F+-_A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4, BEFHEHR
INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of AEFBFENEAKRBNEENRBEEER -
condiment products. For management purposes, the Group operates MEEMS  NEBE —2KENES
in one business unit and has one reportable operating segment as BE—E]2HEESFMAT ¢
follows:
° The food segment that manufactures and sells condiment . BmnebEEREEFKS -

products.

As all of the Group’s revenue is derived from the sale of its products HRAAREB LW ABKARMTENE S
to the customers in the PRC and all of the Group’s identifiable non- EHELR  BAEERZ A ABIERSEE
current assets are located in the PRC, no geographical information as BHEARE - W EEEERERE%ER)
required by IFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented. FE8R [AF & D E8 ) 2HHIHER} o
Information about major customers FEEXEREFZEHR
Revenue derived from sales to individual customers amounting to 10 THREYVREHAN  EREBRABTS Z10
percent or more of the Group’s revenue for the reporting period is set A RMER R SEE FTE A R

out in the following table:

2019 2018
—E-hF “E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETE

Customer A Z2EA 121,302 111,562
Customer B ZF5B 108,548 95,514

229,850 207,076
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA - AR K=
GAINS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHIM
Sale of goods HEEM 874,410
Revenue from contracts with customers EESHNE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () DHKZEF
2019 2018
—E—-hF —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AERBTT
Type of goods EREE
Condiment products IR & 915,170 874,410
Timing of revenue recognition Wiy 225 e 2 B
Goods transferred at a point in time PE—REERNER 915,170 874,410
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TRARARE BRERF ARE BV
in the current reporting period that were included in the EHBaERNREEEE

contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2019 2018
—EB-hF —Z-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

Revenue recognised that was included in ERFARSEHINELH
contract liabilities at the beginning of BEPHKREDSEE

the reporting period:

Sale of goods HEE M 17,085
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA - HWA K W s @)
GAINS (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EESHNE @)
(i)  Performance obligations (i) BAIELF
Information about the Group’s performance obligation is EHALSERNETHERBRIT

summarised below:

Sale of products T EEn

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the BHEARINERBER R —RK
products and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days EXfTE30EQKXANEE  MHFEL
from delivery, except for new customers, where payment in BB EEEIRAINR -

advance is normally required.

Other income and gains HMPA KWz
2019 2018
—E-hF —=—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Subsidies received* B it Bl 9,315
Interest income FBUA 2,092
Others Hitb 245
11,652
* The amount represented subsidies received from the relevant * BEHCHEIERETHEBEE BME
authorities in the PRC without any unfulfiled conditions. Bt HEB R BRI E M A TR AR E K

fhefF -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:
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6. BRBiAIRIE

ARE BRI ME T AL HIRR T 511 & IR

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARBT T ARBET T
Costs of inventories sold EHEFEERAN 471,262 417,448
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREXEITE
and equipment 13 57,550 41,473
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE
(2018: amortisation of prepaid land (ZF—N\F : AL
lease payments) EFIBEHN) 14(a), 14(o) 1,276
Amortisation of other intangible assets H A & Ey 15 -
Minimum lease payments under KREHEETEERE
operating leases regarding plant MR EEERIE
and machinery 2,523
Lease payments not included in TEAAHEaEtEn
the measurement of lease liabilities HEE 14(d) -
Auditor’s remuneration %L Eﬁ@ﬂ@ 2,173
Employee benefit expenses EEBAMAX
(excluding directors’ remuneration): (TEEESEME) :
— Wages and salaries — Ié& & 43,355
— Pension scheme contributions IRIREFTEIER 8,471
51,826
Research and development costs Tff 7 £ A 2 AR AN 41,106
Donations B 167
Foreign exchange loss, net M 5 B BF 8 2,818
Impairment losses on financial assets EREERERIE
— impairment of trade receivables — EWE ZRIBERE 17 682
FINANCE COSTS 7. AERAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERADHTAT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 55,375 45,674
Less: interest capitalised (note 13) A BRI B (HEE13) (2,938) -
52,437 45,674
Interest on finance lease REHER S 2,058 4,753
Interest on lease liabilities MEBGERNE 206 -
54,701 50,427
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBEITHAEZHME
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BB RFESF EmANT EMmRAD - &
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock R ENMEFIEE 383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ () (&R AF]
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the (BREEEMNZERROE _BEENFE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EERERTHRABEHHMOT
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:
2019 2018
—E—NF —Z-\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Fees piokery 533
Other emoluments: B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYF =R 396
Performance related bonuses FIRMABEREA 275
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEI R 48
719
1,252
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FACNBIIFRTESHWRESET -
the year were as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —Z-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETE

Mr. Shen Zhenchang TIRE ST 60
Mr. Sun Jiong i Ychks 175
Mr. Ng Wing Fai REBHRAE 210
445
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RIEBE—NFEM_ZT— N\FERNTEEN
non-executive directors during the years 2019 and 2018. BN IEHTTEENHMBE -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBEITHAEZHME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION ()
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITES  FHTESEKES
and the chief executive ITHAE
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
Fc =193 E3 ) B#fre

[k BNRE  HER0RA SRR Lot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR

2019 —E-NEF

Chief executive and BRTHAERHTES:
executive director:

Mr. Chen Weizhong BEREE

Executive directors: HITES .

Mr. Sheng Mingjian BHfREAE

Mr. Wang Chao TRk

Non-executive directors: FHITES .

Ms. Qian Yinglan® BRELLT
Mr. He Yuanchuan* TR Fo

ZEMBEARLAR —T-NEFFR
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBREITHAEZHME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (&)
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITES  FHTESEKES
and the chief executive (Continued) THBAE @)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
5o 2R 73R RARE

ik EME R0 sHBIEEER gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTE  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

2018 “T-N\F
Chief executive EETHAERUTES:
executive director:
Mr. Chen Weizhong B LA - 180 100 16 296
Executive directors: YTEE:
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BERRLE - 120 0 16 226
Mr. Wang Chao TRk - 9% 85 16 197
- 216 175 32 423
Non-executive director: FBTES:
Ms. Qian Yinglan* BRELL* 88 - - - 88
88 396 275 48 807
* Ms. Qiang Yinglan resigned as a non-executive director of the * BERLZTR-_ZE—NENA+—-H
Group on 12 April 2019. BIARNEEIEHITES -
- Mr. He Yuanchuan was appointed as a non-executive director of o mREIEER—_E—NENA+—-H
the Group on 12 April 2019. BEERAEEIFNTES -
There was no arrangement under which executive directors RNoEBE—NEMN T — NERBERNIT
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years EEWESRSHETANS T -

2019 and 2018.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEBREHESR

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two FR A GoTRBREEEMEBESR(2Z
directors (2018: two), details of whose remuneration are set out in —\F W) HM&FFEEN EXHizEs o
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three AAGEIFEENIIEERTBRABZESR =
(2018: three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor Z(—E—NF: BB EININESH
chief executive of the Company are as follows: BIF -

2019 2018

—EB-NF —=-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EDAN = 547
Performance related bonuses FIRMBEAREA 153
Pension scheme contributions RIS T 44
744
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid MENFUTHENEEERIIEZTSTTHA
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as EMESHEEAZNT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)\F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000 7T - 3
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRr8HiFA <

128

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group was not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands.

The corporate income tax of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China has been provided at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on
the taxable profits, based on the existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the approval from the National Office of Leading Group
for Administration of Hi-tech Enterprise Recognition, Huzhou
Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited and Huzhou Laohenghe Wine Co.,
Limited, both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
granted the “New and Advanced Technology Enterprise” status and
are entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% for the three
consecutive years commencing from 2019.

AEBARANEEKE R BIME &G LXK
RMBLERBRTELSRMBONE  HEEE
EHMFTEN - RIEFSHRENRAIER -
AEBBEHNASESHER

AEBEPEANBEBNEEMSHREER
RITER  RBEREIIZHE25% (ZF—/N\
F 0 25%) HERBAEIEL A -

BEEESHIRMEEREBTETIEEE /)
HEAEBELRI S N EENESEER
NEIRHMNEEBMBEZEER A G (MEGD AR
NEMEEMBAG) EE S EMEE]
B WA E_ZT—NFREBE-FEFEZR
2 15% HIBEERLE o

2019 2018
—E-NF =N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBETF T

Current — PRC BNER—
Charge for the year FANZH 31,437
Deferred (note 24) IERE (M52 24) 2,482
Total tax charge for the year FARBZ LB 33,919
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. T &8 B X
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before HRAARANB RIS B AT e A =8
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction where most of the SETEMERAAE NGB R A EE BT ET R
Company’s subsidiaries are located to the tax expense at the YEIREBR R RAENHIGHA S SBELT ¢

effective tax rate is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR % AR®EFIT %
Profit before tax 4 75 A1 K S 228,387 235,625
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEM R ENTHIEA 57,097 d 58,906 25.0
Lower tax rate enacted by 75 R AT A8 5 B BUE B =R
the local authority (23,419) (23,816) (10.1)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on 1% 7k = [&] & B (A 310 [ /&8 /2 &)
the distributable profits of A IEFE10% 5 E
the Group’s subsidiaries in TEHHR A2
Mainland China 4,067 . 4,133 1.7
Tax incentive on eligible expenditures & & 1% 5 Sz K T S B = (5,810) (6,162) (2.6)
Tax losses not recognised AERTIEEE 938 ! - -
Expenses not deductible for tax A E AR B s 220 b 858 0.4
Tax charge at the Group’s BEASEERHESELN
effective rate Mg 33,919 14.4
11. DIVIDENDS 11. R 2
2019 2018
—E-NF —=-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
Proposed final — RMB6.8 cents BEAR - BREBRAR%Y68 5
(2018: RMB?7.0 cents) per ordinary share —E-N\F: ARET70D) 40,513
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of AEEEZHRBREBEBEARRERER
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general ARERBFERES FHEERTAEE -
meeting.
The 2018 proposed final dividend of RMB40,513,000 was approved “E-NFEZHRKEE ARE40,513,000
by the Company’s shareholders at the annual general meeting on 31 TEEARARBRER -_ZE—NERA=+—
May 2019 and was subsequently distributed in July 2019. HAMBBRERBSFKE FH0E  WHEEN

E-NEFLARE -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. X A EBEREA ARG
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on BREABNCBEBNAEDENARAR LB
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the BEEEAEEENFBERFADRITE R
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of F&% hn#E S 15 £4578,750,000 % ( =& — )\ 4 :
578,750,000 (2018: 578,750,000) in issue during the year. 578,750,000 i%) °
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of A &) i@ zs 158 AJE(L TS
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®TT) 195,294 201,706

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2247 E:@ & it F198 (FRR)

in issue (in thousands) 578,750 578,750
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary RARIEBERHE ARGEERET

equity holders of the Company

— Basic and diluted (RMB) — HEAREE(ARE) 33.7 cents 34.9 cents

33.7% 34.9%

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share HREBEZ-_Z—NWEFEr-_ZE—N\F+=A
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2019 and =t —HILEFEYEAETESNEND %
2018 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive TEREK MASEWEREEMEE@ET
ordinary shares in issue during those years. E2NTRERBNSBEL AR -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BEK&E

Machinery Furniture
and and Motor Leasehold Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures vehicles improvements  in progress Total
BF HERRE HAREE RE BENREE  HRIE @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Wi ARMTR  ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

31 December 2019 “E-hEtZA=1-H

At 1 January 2019: WZE-nE-f-H:
Cost kA 736,673 253,405 5,892 3,587 160,625 1,176,172
Accumulated depreciation ZHFE (91,734) (63,455) (2,554) (2,032) - (165,656)
Net carrying amount BEFE 644,939 189,950 3,338 1,555 160,625 1,010,516

At1 January 2019, netof ~ R-E-NE-F-B-

accumulated depreciation M 2:HTE 160,625 1,010,516
Additions NE 105,821 105,974
Interest capitalised BRIEFIE 7 2,938 2,938
Depregiation provided FNRERE

during the year 6 (36,904) (17,799) (1,425) - (57,550)
Transfers K 99,559 1,948 - (101,507) -

At 31 December 2019, netof  H=-ZE-hE
accumulated depreciation +-A=t-8

NBRZHHE 707,504 174,242 167,877 1,061,878
At 31 December 2019: RZE-NE
TzR=1+-8:
Cost AR 836,232 255,496 5,902 3,587 167,877 1,285,084
Accumulated depreciation ZiHfE (128,638) (81,254) (3,327) (2,681) - (223,206)
Net carmying amount FEFE 707,59 174,042 2,575 906 167,877 1,061,878
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.¥1% - BiE R K& @

(Continued)
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor Leasehold ~ Construction
Buildings equipment fixtures vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BF HRERRE  HARRE g HEMERE ERIE it
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi AR¥TR  ARETR  ARETT  ARSTn  AR%TR  ARETR ARETR
31 December 2018 Z3-NE+ZA=t-B
At 1 January 2018; RZE-N\E-A-R:
Cost A 511,308 229112 5815 2,143 15,990 298,219 1,062,587
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (67,745) (47,996) (2,084) (1.83) (4,622) - (124,183)
Net carrying amount BEE 443563 181,116 3,731 307 11,468 298,219 938,404

M 1 January 2018, net of RZE-\E-A-8"

accumulated depreciation NHEsTE 443563 181,116 3,731 307 11,468 298219 938,404
Additions AE 446 2121 7 1,444 - 109,491 113,585
Depreciation provided duing ~— FRFTERE

the year 6 (23989) (15,459) (470) (196) (1,359) - (41473
Transfers b 224,919 22,166 - - - (247,085) -

At 31 December 2018, netof ~ MZF—)\F
accumulated depreciation t-R=t-8"

MAEZFAE 644,939 189,050 3338 1,555 10,109 160625 1010516
At 31 December 2018: RIE-N\E
toA=t-R:
Cost A 736,673 263,405 5892 3,587 15,990 160,625 1,176,172
Accumulated deprecation EH7E 0173 (63459 0554 032 (5,881) - (ie5s50)
Net carrying amount ERFE 644,939 189,950 3,338 1,505 10,109 160,625 1,010,516
At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings and RZE-NF+ZA=+—0 KAEEHEF
machinery and equipment with an aggregate net carrying amount of BREFES K ARK317,838,000T(=F
approximately RMB317,838,000 (2018: RMB257,155,000) were — )\ AR¥257,155,0007T) W& TIEF
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 22(c)). MR R EE (FRASEMERRITER

RIEIR (FisE22(c)) °

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s machinery and equipment and RZE-NF+ZA=+—0 FrEERE
construction in progress with net carrying amounts of MEMEREERRFESNARARE
RMBS55,014,000 (2018: RMB94,861,000) and RMB30,401,000 55,014,00070( —E—/\4 : AR¥94,861,000
(2018: RMB30,401,000) were held under finance leases, respectively. 7T) B AR # 30,401,000 T(=ZZ— N\F : A

K #30,401,0007T ) FH#ES K s AR T A2 o
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=

14. LEASES 14. 8
The Group as a lessee AEBEAEABEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and NEEEELREHMELKEBENEESY
machinery and leasehold land used in its operations. Lump sum UEMHETEEERGK AEEDTEL —
payments were made upfront to acquire certain parcels of leased WM —FEF50E VERETHE L
land with a term of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made ABEIS0F MG TeRIER Lt EEMER
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of plant and machinery TEMNR - HMELRKURBENHBAEEN
generally have lease terms between 2 and 15 years. Generally, the FoFE15FE - —fMs AEBTERAE
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets ELASNEZEREHEEERE -

outside the Group.

(a) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January (a) FELHEEHE(ZE—NF—
2019) A—HZA)
2018
AL
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHREE 54,519
Amortised during the year FREH (1,276)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HKNEEE 53,243
Less: Current portion included in prepayments, W RT AT RIE - A EURGRIE R
other receivables and other assets HivEEMRE D (1,270)
Non-current portion EmBNEL D 51,973
Leasehold land of the Group with an aggregate carrying AEER-_ZT—N\F+=-_A=+—HZ
amount of approximately RMB53,179,000 as at 31 December EREELY AR 53,179,000 THEE
2018 has been pledged to secure bank loans granted to the THIE MR R A EEERDR
Group (note 22(c)). 1TEFR(ME220) °
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14. LEASES (Continued) 14. *E.E(,‘E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEAEHEA @
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FAEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and NEBFRAEEENERELERNE
the movements during the year are as follows: mr
Prepaid
land lease
payments Plant and
i machinery Total
HENRE BN et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥TR AR¥T T

As at 1 January 2019 P 53,243 2,930 56,173
Additions 7 - 967 967
Depreciation charge (1,276) (619) (1,895)

As at 31 December 2019

Leasehold land of the Group with an aggregate carrying AEERZZE-—NF+ZA=+—82Z
amount of approximately RMB51,967,000 as at 31 December A BREE 4 AR 51,967,000 T E
2019 has been pledged to secure bank loans granted to the THEAEER - UERAEBERMNIR
Group (note 22(c)). TER (i 22() -
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14. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under interest-

bt 265 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

14. FHE @)
REBEREABEA @)
(c) FHEEE
ERHEEAE(BETBRTREME

bearing bank and other borrowings) and the movements during FORMEREENEZEFSHNT :
the year are as follows:
2019
—EB-NF
Lease liabilities
HEEE
RMB’000
AR®ETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHREE 3,237
New leases Mg 967
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FRNE R EIE 206
Payments IR (570)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—A=+—H/ME@EE 3,840
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENE 994
Non-current portion FEmENEB D 2,846

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

HERENIHRDMERS HBRE
MiEE34 ik EE -

(d) BEEEFRNERTHERNSEMOT

2019

—E-NF

RMB’000

AREFT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 206

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENEMX 1,895
Expense relating to short-term leases and other BRNBHEERFISHERR -_ZT—IF

leases with remaining lease terms ended on or FTZA=F+—HEZRERGIABEE
before 31 December 2019 (included in cost of sales) AR ) W E i EMFAER L 1,319
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R R ERE 3,420

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 28(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.

() MHEMRERLBBELREMBREM
FF28(c) P HEEE -
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. Hth L &=
Patent Computer
and licences Software Total
BRI RFA EEH oy
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
g ARETT AREFT ARETT
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of ZE-NF-R—BZRA
accumulated amortisation [REAGEGE 5 414 - 414
Addition NE - 784 784
Amortisation provided during FANEFHREH 6
the year - (153) (159)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+ZA=+—H 414 631 1,045
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+-A=1+—H
Cost (BN 414 784 1,198
Accumulated amortisation Sy 1 - (153) (153)
Net carrying amount BREFE 414 631 1,045
31 December 2018 RZE—-NF+ZHA=+—H
Patent and
licences
ER R
RMB’000
ARBETFTT
At 31 December 2018 R-E—-NE+=-A=+—H
Cost B AR 414
Accumulated amortisation BN 3 -
Net carrying amount IREDF(E 414
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16. INVENTORIES 16. 78
2019 2018
—E-hF —=-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Raw materials R 26,248 12,113
Work in progress TR 1,353,886 1,225,093
Finished goods DA 23,597 39,296
1,403,731 1,276,502
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s inventories with a carrying NR-ZZE—NF+-_A=1+—08 KEHKHF
amount of RMB682,279,000 (2018: RMB703,415,000) were pledged BREEAARE 682,279,000 ( ZFE— \F :
to secure bank loans granted to the Group, as further detailed in note ARM703,415,000C) MFE  fEAANE
22(c) to the consolidated financial statements. FTERBTERNER  E—FSFEFHNEGE
AP BEmRM L 22(c) °
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BIRE 5 KE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Trade receivables JEUNE 578 257,005 195,341
Impairment A (2,194) (682)
Trade receivables FEWE 5508 254,811 194,659
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. AEEHZFPHENBESBIAEERSRE
The credit period is generally one to three months. EEHRREA—Z=EA -
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding ZXElﬁﬂﬁﬁ*”&@mﬁuﬂl%ﬁfﬁﬁfﬂ
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior EE - MaHARThEeREEETE RS
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit RIS IIﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁuﬂlﬁ%xﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁ&'ﬂ
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables EHBIERNEMASEERGOERE -
are non-interest-bearing. WE SFIBIWTETE ©
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EWE B RE @
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the end REBNREHREWE 5218 (F1% Eig R
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss ) IREZRBMNERRTNT ¢

allowance, is as follows:

2019 2018
—g-nE T )\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

138

Within 3 months 3EA A

3 to 6 months 3&6 @A

6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1F
Over 1 year 1% E

238,458 187,215
14,085 2,870
1,585 3,511
683 1,063

254,811 194,659

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

[ENE SRR ER R R EEEMT

2019 2018
—B-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

At beginning of year F4) -
Impairment losses (note 6) BEEE (MizEe) 682
At end of year FR 682

The increase in the loss allowance of RMB1,512,000 (2018:
RMB682,000) was mainly due to the increase in the past due balance
of trade receivables.
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The Group
classifies its customers into categories A (the highest), B, C and D
based on their business scale and capabilities. The provision rates
are based on days past due of the Group’s customers with similar
loss patterns, among which the customers classified as categories A,
B and C were merged into the same group for impairment
assessment as their credit terms and loss patterns were similar. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

Customers classified as categories A, B and C

17. B E 5 FKIE @)

AEBEERZHRE A RERBBEETR
B U EEHEEER - ARERE
EFNEBRERENSEFL DB RA(K
=) B CRDE - BEXTIREAEELR
BUBBREANTPNARKEGEE B4
EHBER/A BRCENEFPCEAHAR—
ARBIAERERE  REERBERTPNE
EMREEEAES - AR ERREEMN
HER BEERHEEARRSE AHMAES
FARBEEN - AR RARREENRNTE
AR ERBREBENER -

UNT#ESIEREEEERFRASERKE S
FRENEERBHNER

RIE—-hF+ZA=+—H
ESHEEA -BRCEWEF

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEHEX
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) EEBE(ARETT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE(ARETT)

Customers classified as category D

Expected credit loss rate JEHEEBEEX
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REAE(ARETT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEEE (ARETIT)

Past due
B
Less than 1to2 Over
Current 1 year years 2 years Total
BEH —-FHUR -ERE ®MENUL st

0.0%
182,199

B EBDENEF

0.0%

219,936

Past due
B
Less than 1to2 Over
Current 1 year years 2 years Total
B —-FH0R -ERE MENL st

39.7%

1,776
705

EEMBERR AT

100.0%
196
196

—T-NFEH
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EIRE S R Em)
Total ol
Past due
BB
Less than 1to2 Over
Current 1 year years 2 years Total
EE MR -EmE ®MENUL #et
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) RmaE(ARETT) 182,559 72,474
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEBE(ARETT) =

140

As at 31 December 2018 R-EBE-NF+=-B=+—H
Customers classified as categories A, B and C ESHEAA - BRCENES
Past due
80 AR
Less than 1t02 Over
Current 1 year years 2 years Total
g8 —FURN  —EWE  MEME #@at
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBEE 0.0% 0.0% 2.4% - 0.0%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) RmaE(ARETT) 148,474 17,151 616 - 166,241
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) BHEEBE (ARETT) - - 15 - 15
Customers classified as category D ESEADENEF
Past due
kil
Less than 1t02 Over
Current 1 year years 2 years Total
28 —FURN —EME MENME @t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRE 0.0% 9.7%  35.3% 100% 2.3%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EEEE(ARETIT) 24,141 4,371 532 56 29,100
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) EHEEBE (ARETT) - 423 188 56 667
Total =t
Past due
bl
Less than 1t02 Over
Current 1 year years 2 years Total
2H  —FUR  —ERF  WENE st
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) EEBE(ARETT) 172,615 21,522 1,148 56 195,341
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) BHREEEE(ARETT) - 423 203 56 682
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18. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER 18. FE{JFIE - HEWWKIER
RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS HihEE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E2-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Prepayments (note) TR (M) 517,342 603,360
Value-added tax recoverable A U [B] 32 (B 165,288 125,808
Deposits and other receivables e N E b e W R IE 41,893 29,487
724,523 758,655
Less: Portion classified as non-current assets & : DB AIER BN &EE L5 (345,570) (415,746)
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATERFRIE - EAth FEUGRIE K&
other receivables and other assets H A& Em) B E D 378,953 342,909
Note: BT -
Details of prepayments as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: KRB NER-_T—\E+-_A=+—HHWTEN
FIEREBWT ¢
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P& ARET AREFT
Prepayments for fixed assets B & EM TR RIE (i) 315,345 415,746
Prepayments for procurements of REE FA K s Ay A FE
condiment products (i) 68,567 100,000
Prepayments for procurements of raw materials £70& R 44 £Ha9 78+ 7018 (il 128,465 83,220
Other prepayments HFER A 4,965 4,394
517,342 603,360
Less: e
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERBEELD (345,570) (415,746)
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATENFIE - Bt ERGRIE R
other receivables and other assets HibBERREI S 171,772 187,614
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18. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER 18. At 1E - HMEWHRIER
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RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS
(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(i) Prepayments for fixed assets include i) prepayment for the construction
of Phase Il plant premise amounting to RMB 238 million. In the view of
the Directors, the construction is expected to commence in the second
quarter of 2020; and ii) prepayment for the production equipment for
the Phase Il premise amounting to RMB 77.3 million. The Directors
expect to receive the equipment upon completion of the plant premise
construction.

(i) Prepayments for procurements of condiment products primarily
included prepayments for procurements of condiment products from an
independent third party manufacturer under a poverty alleviation
program led by China Development Bank Zhejiang Branch.

(iii) Prepayments for procurements of raw material primarily included the
prepayments for procurements of raw materials from independent third
party suppliers to ensure the steady supplies of agriculture products,
which would to be settled in a period of 12 months according to the
procurement schedules between the suppliers and the Group.

Impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date and
expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The financial
assets included in the above balance were categorised in stage 1 at
the year of the reporting period. In calculating the expected credit
loss rate, the Group considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data. During the current year, the
Group estimated that the expected loss rate for the other receivables
was minimal.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past
due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance
was assessed to be minimal.
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. IE%EZEE%%F%&EHHT?

TIME DEPOSITS ;X
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR#EFTT
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTAER 410,107 345,188
Time deposits FEHITFER 67,039 69,659
477,146 414,847
Less: A
Pledged for bank loans (note 22(c)) IR A EERTTE (M sE 22(c)) (67,039) (69,659)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEED 410,107 345,188
Denominated in Renminbi (RMB) IAREEEHE 409,241 339,071
Denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (HK$) LA TTEHE 676 5,170
Denominated in United States Dollar (USD) AZETTEHE 190 947
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 410,107 345,188
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under ARBETREHLBRKAMER - AW - RIE
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and R i CONE B IR G ) M (A5 TE ~ BB A
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange EERETE)  NEBR B IBEREKEINE
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other ERHIRITEARE LB EHMER -
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITBESIRBESBSETERN R EH)Z
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited E)J?’HJ$%?H)U’F\J B o IRITEB K TEBFERITF
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. FANTERD S E 4040 8RB (E 2R 1T -
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20. TRADE PAYABLES 20. BT E Z A
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the NEREBARIENE S IBIREZ M MRS
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DT :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

Within 3 months 3 & AAA 77,248
3 to 6 months 3E61EA 20,661
Over 6 months 6 18 AU L 15,417

113,326
Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are AEBERNESHRIBLTHE - —RER—
normally settled on terms of one to six months, extending to longer EREANES  ERBEENHRERSS
period for those long standing suppliers. The carrying amounts of the THRMRENEEHR - [ENE S HIEHR
trade payables approximate to their fair values. HEEEQFERSE -
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21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. BE{ifEtZmE R ELIEE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARBT ARBETFTT
Contract liabilities GHBE 6,727 21,465
Other tax payables H A ERTRIE 166,260 64,766
Other payables and accruals Hu e IE R EFTIER (b) 60,723 49,915
Due to the ultimate holding company JES R AR A B FA 22,002 -
Salary payables ENEHe 14,226 11,597
269,938 147,743
Notes: P E -

(@  Detalils of contract liabilities are as follows: @ AHNaEFBENT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F —E-N\F
+=—A=+—-8B +=HA=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT

Short-term advances received from B &P R a5 B

customers
Sale of goods HEEM 6,727 21,465 17,085
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver AHEBERIERERE M IR 52 B8
products. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to Ko BNBBR-ZZ—NFRLD  HEEHR
the decrease in short-term advances received from customers in RE RSB E T 85 E FTE A& i [ % - AR
relation to the provision of sale of goods at the end of the year. B EREA OB D T ER
(o)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of (o) EMENFIEATE  FHHRA=EA -

three months.
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N —
22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 22 T ERRITRHEMER
OTHER BORROWINGS
2019 2018
“E-NF —E-N\E
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRFIE (%) HE  AR®TR EEAE%) HE ARETL
Current k)
Lease liabilties (note 14(c)) MEaREFF140) 4.75-4.90 2020 994 - - -
— 7 — 7 $
Bank loans — secured @010 BITER — B A0 4.35-6.09 on demand 466,540 392-6.09  ondsmand 660,920
BEXR BEk
Bank loans — secured ¢/ RITER — FHEARE00 4.79-5.87 2020 391,210 JECKerRa 2019 237,237
—_ 7 —= $ :g*ﬂi
Other borrowings — unsecured @9 E-ffifE 31 — M3 0l 6.74-7.97 2020 31,435 - - -
— 7 — 7 $
Finance lease payables © (note 23)  JEfT @& E708 O (i 23) 6.74 2020 27,962 479 2019 34,605
—_ 7 —= $ :g*ﬂi
918,141 932,762
Non-current JFEDES
Lease liabilities (note 14(c)) HEAE(MH140) 4.75-490  2021-2029 - - -
:s:—g
“EChE
Bank loans — secured @l RITER — B0 523 2021 ) 5.23-5.70 2020 70,000
—E--& —ECEE
Other borrowings — unsecured €9 E {31 — & 0o 6.74-7.97 2020 ] - - -
“ECER
Finance lease payables ©(note 23)  JEfT pE & E7078 9 (i 23) = 479 2020 27,962
“TCTF
106,673 97,962
Total it 1,024,814 1,080,724
Analysed into: SHMOT
Within one year or on demand R—F R ER 918,141 932,762
In the second year BEZER 87,891 97,962
In the third year to fifth years, E-RERFN 17,668 -
inclusive (HEMERIEER)
Beyond five years AFNUE 1,114 -
1,024,814 1,030,724
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total facilities of bank borrowings
amounted to RMB919,400,000 (2018: RMB1,065,400,000), of which
RMB909,750,000 (2018: RMB968,157,000) had been utilised.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank loans amounting to
approximately RMB466,540,000 (2018: 660,920,000) were not in
compliance with certain financial loan covenants. The maturity of the
aforesaid bank loans as at 31 December 2019 were all within 12
months and have already been classified as current liabilities.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were
pledged to banks and other lenders for securing the bank loans and
other finance leases granted to the Group.

The carrying values of these assets are:

bt 265 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

2. ;TERITREMER@®

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE

Prepaid land lease payments FEAS - b E RE
Right-of-use assets b RREEE
Inventories L=

Pledged deposits BTN

Certain of the Group’s bank loans were guaranteed by Mr. Chen
Weizhong, the Director of the Company, Ms. Xing Liyu, spouse of Mr.
Chen Weizhong, Mr. Chen Weidong, brother of Mr. Chen Weizhong,
Mr. Chen Jinhao, son of Mr. Chen Weizhong, and related companies of
the Group (note 31(d)).

All the Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated in RMB.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
approximate to their fair values.

PsE
@ R-E-AF+-_A=+—08 KEHRT
BRZBEEE A A AR 919,400,000
T(ZE—\F : AR¥1,065,400,0007T)
Hh AR#909,750,000 T(ZZ—)\4F : A
R # 968,157,000 7T) & °
) R-ZBE-AF+-_A=+—8 KEEHR
TERE AR H466,540,0007T( = ZF— \4F ¢
AR 660,920,0007T) T & ETLRE
REHE - -RNE—-—NEF+_A=+—H" ' L
MIRITERZBISASE12EARN > TEK
BEARBAE-
© REEHER AEEEETEEEE TR
REMER  EAREBEATERRITE R
HibgE A EMIER -
ZEEENERES
2019 2018
—EB-hE —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARETT AREFTT
13 317,838 257,155
14(a) - 53,179
14(b) 51,967 -
16 682,279 703,415
19 67,039 69,659
1,119,123 1,083,408
@ AEEETRITEXDABHAARESMRE

BAEE  RAREENEBRAELL B
WREENPABRERLE  BEALE
#) 52 F Chen Jinhao 5t 4 & 7~ 5 B @ Bt 2 7)
R (FIFE31(d)) °

AEBABRITREMEFEGUAREE -
AEBRTELEMEFNRAERLATE

BE -

EEMBERR AT

—T-NFEH
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23. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 23. EHERNRIE

148

The Group leased certain of its machinery and equipment in 2017.
These leases are classified as finance leases with remaining lease
terms of 1 year (2018: of 2 years) as at 31 December 2019.
According to the sale and leaseback agreements, if no default occurs
during the lease term, the ownership of the plant and machinery shall
be automatically transferred to the lessee at a price of RMB3,000.

The following table sets out the details of the sale and leaseback
arrangements as at 31 December 2019:

AEBRZZ—+FHESR THISMEHE -
R-ZE—hhE+_A=+—0 HEHEH
HARENRE FHuEHAE—F(ZZT—N
FME) c RIEERHERRE - MAEHA
KBEEL ABMERESEZHBEEBUAR
53,000 TTHIETE B ENEB AT A -

TREIIN _F-AFT_A=+—HUE
BELRZHNFE

Effective

interest rate
Date of incurrence Principal amount (%) Maturity Guarantee deposit

BRFAIZ
BEHH rx& (%) EE-i = RES
2017/07/19 RMB32,100,000 4.79% 2020/07/19 RMB7,130,000
—ET—tFtA+NH AR 32,100,000 7T —E-EFLATHRE  AR¥7,130,0007T
2017/09/13 RMB43,461,000 4.79% 2020/09/13 RMB9,662,000
—ET—tFNA+=H AR 43,461,000 7T —E-EFNAT=H AR¥9,662,0007T
2017/11/06 RMB27,292,000 4.79% 2020/11/06 RMB6,062,000
—E—tF+—ARH AR 27,292,000 7T —E-EF+—AARHB AR¥6,062,0007T

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s machinery and equipment and
construction in progress with net carrying amounts of
RMB55,014,000 (2018: RMB94,861,000) and RMB30,401,000

(2018: RMB30,401,000) were held under finance leases.
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23. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continues)  23. Rl &S A & FE{F 20 1H @)

At 31 December 2019, the total future minimum lease payments RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H BRERAEH
under finance leases and their present values were as follows: ENRARFEEETBEABLEREBENT -
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHEE HEHEE BRIEHEE HEHEE
MIE ;A HMIERE FIEIRE
2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-hAFE —ZET-N\F ZE-hF —=)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR¥BTRT ARETR

Amounts payable:
Within one year
In the second year

JERT A ¢
R—FER
FFNRN

Total minimum finance
lease payments

Future finance charges

RERERERBAE
28,718

BEBES (756)

Total net finance lease payables

Portion classified as current
liabilities (note 22)

EVE SR FUBE AR 27,962 62,567

DEAERBARRY
(fiz¥22) (27,962) (34,605)

Non-current portion (note 22)

FEmEE D (MFE22)

ZEMBEARLAR —T-NEFFR
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24. DEFERRED TAX 24.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year
are as follows:

IR FE B IR

EEHRBRENEENFANEEIT

Accruals  Withholding

and other tax on
deductible distributable
Unrealised temporary dividends
profit on differences (Note a) Total
inventories  FEFTRIER BB
RERFE Himigil REMOFENH
F 8 TEMHERE (KizEa) Foy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFT ARBF T ARBFT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-NF—A—H 276 1,978 (22,592) (20,338)
Deferred tax charged to the FRARGABRRINERE
consolidated statement of profit ~ IEZERIIE (K3E10)
or loss during the year (note 10) (14) 1,665 (4,133) (2,482)
Net deferred tax liabilities as RZE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H
At 31 December 2018 and kZZE-NF—A—A8
1 January 2019 EXHIBAETE 262 3,643 (26,725) (22,820)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to  FRREA B R A (F1R)
the consolidated statement of FRIERTTE (MiEE10)
profit or loss during the year
(note 10) 191 645 (4,067) (3,231)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) at R ZE—hFE+_A=+—8H
31 December 2019 MELHIRAE (AfE)FHE 453 4,288 (30,792) (26,051)

Note a: Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
liabilities of RMB123,166,000 (31 December 2018: RMB106,899,000)
in respect of temporary differences relating to the unremitted profits of
subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,231,663,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,068,988,000), that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Note b: For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

bt 265 e % Bt (%)
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24, EEFIE @)

fiab: RAEINR  ETELEREEERBED

REREFBHRRRFER - AT HAEKE
HRIE TR TR A AR A B TS ¥R S PR P E D AT

2019 2018
—E-hEF = )N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETIT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the R E MISARR R R
consolidated statement financial position EERBAEFE 4.741 3,905
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE MBSARR RIERE
consolidated statement financial position RIEF I B EFRE (30,792) (26,725)
(26,051) (22,820)
25. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 25 HitREIEE
2019 2018
—E-hF AN
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5 AR®T ARBETTT
Other long-term payables HEh REIE A (@) 133,000 138,000
Others Hith 3,948 4,046
136,948 137,046
(a) On 6 May 2016, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, (a) AZE—XRFRANRHE  ARFIMEZEK

Huzhou Chen Shi Tian Niang Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
(“Huzhou Chenshi”) and Huzhou Lachenghe Brewery Co., Limited
(“Huzhou Laohenghe”, which is also a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huzhou Chenshi) entered into an investment agreement with China
Development Fund Co., Ltd. (“CD Fund”) (Bl Z R E S BR A7) (the
“Investment Agreement”). Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, CD
Fund agreed to subscribe for a 3.5% equity interest in Huzhou
Laohenghe at a total cash consideration of RMB133 million (the “Capital
Investment”) and Huzhou Laohenghe shall pay CD Fund a fixed annual
return equal to 1.2% of the Capital Investment from the date of the
agreement. In addition, Huzhou Chenshi has a contractual obligation to
repurchase the entire equity interest in Huzhou Laohenghe held by CD
Fund within 8 years according to the repayment schedule under the
Investment Agreement. Further details of the Investment Agreement
have been disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 9
May 2016 and 29 June 2016, respectively.

EEMBERR AT

BREAMBREREERZERAERA A (H
MBREC]) B & B AEeE A R~ A (M
ZEM] - TRHNREKHNEZEMBAR) H
BHEREZSERAR(ERERES A
SFEBE(DEERED - RBTE WS
BREREASAEAARKIBZAETHR
SRRERBERINEEMEF3.6%E#E(E
AEALD - MM ZENE S ZiH#E R e
BEFMBEHERESIMNBEENRERRA
1.2% W EE B3R o b5 - MR AR 4
BE AREIEBEOERFRRN/N\F
M B3 R E S AN ZE MK 25
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25. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 25. Htt RIEEw
(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (a) (%)
As Huzhou Chenshi does not have the unconditional right to avoid AN PR B S AR YR 01 A 1A B 2 (A B
delivering cash to CD Fund pursuant to the Investment Agreement, the BREASYNRESHEEHEREN  BEAR
Capital Investment of RMB133 million was recorded as a financial A A B THENIE AR CRATRHEAE -
liability.
The balance of other long term payables was analysed as follows: Hibh EHIEN RIB4E DT -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREETTT
Amounts repayable: FEEERUE -
1to 5 years —2RF 133,000 83,000
Beyond five years AFEE - 50,000
133,000 133,000
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. IR 74
Shares iz 0
2019 2018
—g-hnE  —FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AEBTT
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of USD0.0005  1,000,000,000 % & f% & & 0.0005 £ 7T
(RMB0.00305) each (AR#0.00305 7T.) H) & @ A% 3,050
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
578,750,000 ordinary shares of USD0.0005 578,750,000 % & A F11E 0.0005 X 7T
(RMBO0.00305) each (ARM0.00305 7)) &) I @ A% 1,767
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and

26. R 7N ()

ARBEBITIRA RO % EBRE B I

share premium account is as follows: T
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BITRMEE BROTREA  BROBER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBFT  ARETL
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—N\F—HA—H 578,750,000 1,767 934,688 936,455
Final 2017 dividend declared BER-Z—tFREKE - - (37,619) (37,619
At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\F+ZA=1+—H
1 January 2019 ;MZE—NF—HA—H 578,750,000 1,767 897,069 898,836
Final 2018 dividend declared BEER-ZF—NFRERE - - (40,513) (40,513)
At 31 December 2019 —NWE+ZA=+—H 578,750,000 1,767 856,556 858,323
27. RESERVES 27. &
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for AEERAFERBEFENRESERE
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated BERGEVBMENGEEREHRAZ
statement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial Z o
statements.
(a) Merger reserve (a) EOtFAE
The merger reserve represents the difference between the SO RBEEEER S HERIARQ R EE
Company’s shares of the nominal value of the paid-up capital FIT 4% B8 B 8 /2 ) 9 480 R A% AN T B B R 2 R UK
of the subsidiaries acquired and the Company’s cost of BB AR TS M AR ZEE -
acquisition of the subsidiaries under the principles of the
pooling-of-interests method.
(b) Capital reserve (b) ERGHE
Capital reserve arises from the capital contribution by the ERFHERANRNERERNEE -
controlling shareholders of the Company.
(c) Statutory surplus reserve (c) EERRFE

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus reserve
are made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC, and are approved by the
respective boards of directors.

BRENBESBEEEERMRFEFHERSD
EE@?EE&%EW'JLX&ZKQETEAEP B i 32 1

BARIMAMERAAPET  URHBES
THE
ZEMBEARLAR —T-NFFR
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

(b)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of RMB967,000 and
RMB967,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for plant and equipment (2018: Nil).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are as

follows:

2019

Interest
payables

BAFE
RMB’000
ARBTT

At 31 December 2018
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16

RZZ-N\F+-A=1—H
MBS REERE 165
ZE/;

At 1 January 2019 (restated)

Changes from financing
cash flows

Interest expense

Interest paid classified
as operating cash flows

Interest paid classified as
investing cash flows

New lease

R-E-NEF-A—-B(EE7)
&

A=
RERERERD

2

=

(52,437)
FERZ 55,375
EDEBLERSREY
BFIE
SBERERSREYZ
BAFIE

(2,938)
e -

At 31 December 2019

RF-NE+=A=1-R
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(a

IBHAERS
FR - AEBEREE R

R HTEE

28. e HERNERME

EZHE

EREEENMERERIIERSEMS
Bl B A R #967,0007T & A R
967,000 T (—ZF—)\4F : #) o

(b)

.
Bank loan
Lease and other
liabilities  borrowings
BITR
HEER HER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR%TR

968,157

24,855

993,012

Finance
lease
payables
MERE
EARE
RMB’000
ARBF T

62,567

(34,605)
2,058

(2,058)

RELZHMELABNESHIT ¢

Amount

due to

the ultimate
holding
company
B
ERATNE
RMB’000
ARBTR




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

ﬁi%%ﬁi’%l‘fﬁi(ﬁé)

7 NE TR NE

31 December 2019 —F

28. ZEBRERERME @

(b) (Continued) (b) ®
e
2018 —F-NF
Interest Bank and Finance lease
payables other loans payables
EAFE  ROREMER REHERMSHKE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT ARBF T ARBF T
At 1 January 2018 WR-ZE—N\F—H—H - 852,760 102,049
Changes from financing gt &R &R E &
cash flows (45,674) 115,397 (39,482)
Interest expense %IJ S 45,674 - 4,753
Interest paid classified DB AKER S REZCMAFE
as operating cash flows - - (4,753)
At 31 December 2018  R-Z—N\E+-A=+—H - 968,157 62,567
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERHRH
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated AR RERTNHEERSRD
statement of cash flows is as follows: FEEEY N
2019
—E-hF
RMB’000
AR® T

z<<<M ééﬂg".
BMEEDEE

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

EEMBERR AT

“T-NFFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 = E— A F+-_A=+—H

29. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 20. 5 EE#H

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s bank loans are REERBITERMEBAEENFBIHNLE
included in note 22(c) to the consolidated financial statements. & Bk EE 22(0)

30. COMMITMENTS 30. &4

(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of (a) INEFERIRE HIR A T 51 & AR HE -
the reporting period:

2019 2018
—g-AE  —T\E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETR ARBET T

Contracted, but not provided for: EETABEREHR R -
Plant and machinery M= RS 46,361 133,281
Building B 74,945 -
121,306 133,281
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 b) R=E—-—NFE+=ZA=+—H
December 2018 B £ R E AR IE
The Group leased certain of its properties and equipment AEERBEGEHELRHSHEREST
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and M REE - MERZERE 2 HBRE
equipment were negotiated for terms ranging between one and BR—ETF -
ten years.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum RZZB—N\F+_A=+—0H " K~5E
lease payments under operating leases falling due as follows: A EE TR B R IRSEBEN K
MEI
2018
—E-)\F
RMB’000
ARBETTT
Within one year —FR 2,139
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRAF(BREMFBELEAN) 2,076
After five years AF% 1,504
5,719
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

bt 265 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

31. BB LS RS

(@ Name and relationship of related parties (a) B HMEREE
Name Relationship
®E 22hES
Mr. Chen Weizhong The executive director of the Company
PRETAR A RARHITES
Mr. Chen Weidong Brother of Mr. Chen Weizhong
BRIGTER T4 PRGBS ERLH
Ms. Xing Liyu Spouse of Mr. Chen Weizhong
M EL L BRETB ST LB
Mr. Chen Jinhao Son of Mr. Chen Weizhong
Chen Jinhao %t & REDFENTT

(b)

Zhejiang Zhongwei Brewery Limited

Company significantly influenced by Mr. Chen Jinhao,

son of Mr. Chen Weizhong

AL RS G IR A A ZRARLER ST Chen Jinhao b £ FAE FE M A F
Key Shine The Company’s ultimate holding Company
AN LE 085 S S i /NC]
Hu Zhou Heng Peng Trading Company The subsidiary of Key Shine
Limited (“Heng Peng”)
HMMNEREZERAT([1EM]) Key Shine B K1 & A &
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (b) ZERAVBRMEREMIBOFAAR

consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

(i)

(iii)

Certain advances with maximum amount outstanding of
RMB700,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019
were made to Mr. Chen Jinhao, which had been fully
settled by the end of the reporting period.

Certain advances with maximum amount outstanding of
RMB3,000,000 during the year ended 31 December
2019 were made to Zhejiang Zhongwei Brewery Limited,
which had been fully settled by the end of the reporting
period.

The interest expenses with respect to the advances
payments mentioned above in (i) and (ii) were
approximately RMB1,000 in aggregate. These interest
expenses were calculated at the rate of 4.35% per
annum which was determined according to the prices
and conditions similar to loans offered by the banks to
the Group.

SEFNEUTEBRTHR

B
29N
2

BE-_Z—NF+=ZA=+—H
IEFE + ARAF]ME Chen Jinhao 5t
EERREBEERBREZARE
700,0007T W) E T8 - B
HERBERRES -

=)

iy BEZZ-—NF+ZA=+—H
LEFE - ARE AL R RS
ERARMEHAEBERERZ A
R# 3,000,000 THE TR - &
BRIEE RIS BARES -

b 3T ) R (i) Pt 22 R A R B R S
AHHOHBARE1,0007T - B R
FEF IR TR EL35%F L
FIE TH IR IR B ER 77 (M) AN £ B PR
HEFHELUNER RIGGET -

(i)

ZEMBEARLAR —T-NFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 = E— A F+-_A=+—H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b)

(©)

(Continued)

)

Pursuant to certain agreements regarding the payment
arrangements among the Group, Key Shine and Heng
Peng (the “Agreements”), on 25 March 2019, the Group
received RMB45,982,000 from Heng Peng through a
subsidiary of the Group, and on 26 March 2019, the
Group paid the equivalent sum of money in United States
dollar through another subsidiary of the Group to Key
Shine. Upon the receipt of the money by Key Shine from
the Group, the Group’s balance due to Heng Peng
resulting from the aforesaid transaction was fully settled
according to the Agreements. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group’s maximum amount
outstanding with Heng Peng was RMB45,982,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s balance with Key
Shine was RMB22,002,000, which were unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum
amount outstanding with Key Shine was
RMB22,002,000.

Compensation for key management
personnel of the Group:

(&)

(iv)

31. EHEB AR Z @

RIEAREE  Key Shine M1EAI~
BMABNRLZENE THE ([
#ZD) RZE-NF=A=+H
B AEEZBHMBARRE
BAUSER A R 5 45,982,000 7T © I
RZEBE—HAF=A=-+HHEXK
SEBBEHE S B RQ R [ Key
ShineX { & (& 3 T £ %8 ° Key
Shine W B AN B K FRIB1% @ 1RIK
W AEERLEARSEEN
ENERNEHRE D BEE - &
2-FT-AF+-_A=+—HIt
FE ALEEERERNERS S
A AR 45,082,0007T °

R-ZE—hF+-_A=+—8"
RNEBE A K Key Shine 454 A
AR #22,002,0007C © BRIFKIEAE
BERE . PERREREE-
HE-_ZTZ-hE+-A=+—H
LEFE - AEEA R Key Shine /)
FIEE% B ANRE22,002,0005T °

AEBTEEEAENME

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Performance related bonuses
Pension scheme contributions

RIGEMHIEAT
RIREFTEI R

¥ RREEYDN S

Total compensation paid to key
management personnel

N TFEEEREABNH R

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8
to the consolidated financial statements.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019

2019 2018
= AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT

586
385
79
1,050

EEMenE— PR ARAMBER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. HEAB L XS w

(Continued)

(d) Provision of guarantees by related parties: (d) EBEETS FTIREEAVIELR -
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITEE
Mr. Chen Weizhong PRE AL AE 732,160
Mr. Chen Weidong PRETR A 20,000
Mr. Chen Weizhong, Mr. Chen Weidong FRETHE A  FRETREE R

and Ms. Xing Liyu F Ezz 4 70,000 -
Mr. Chen Weizhong and Ms. Xing Liyu FRfE oA R 22+ 589,850 -
Zhejiang Zhongwei Brewery Limited AL IREREB R AT 55,000 -
Mr. Chen Weizhong, Ms. Xing Liyu and FRETREAE MR ELE R

Zhejiang Zhongwei Brewery Limited AL REEE B R A 7 20,000 -
Mr. Chen Weizhong, Ms. Xing Liyu, BRETABSAE - MR E+ -

Mr. Chen Jinhao and Zhejiang Zhongwei Chen Jinhao 7t 4 &

Brewery Limited T R R s A PR 7] 55,000 -

789,850 752,160

ZIENEEEER AT —T—NFER 159



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 = E—hE+=-A=+—H

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. ZEFEIHNEMTA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial K T ERRERNERENT :

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019 —E-hEF
Financial assets THEE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
REB A
FTER
SREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Trade receivables FEWE 55008 254,811
Financial assets included in prepayments, STAFER B C Hih B R E M E ER
other receivables and other assets CRIEE 41,893
Pledged deposits BEHEBIFHR 67,039
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRREFEY 410,107
773,850
Financial liabilities EHERE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
FTER
= =R
RMB’000
ARET
Trade payables FEE 5508 78,587
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 5t A K EN B R ETBE NS REE 60,723
Due to the ultimate holding company R R AR A R FE 22,002
Financial liabilities included in other long term liabilities ~ FFAHEMEHEENSRERE 133,000
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHEERIT REMERK 1,024,814

1,319,126
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 32. ZERETHNEMT A @
CATEGORY (Continued)
2018 —F-F
Financial assets THEE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
big: £ [N
FER
RMB’000
AREET T
Trade receivables FEUE 55008 194,659
Financial assets included in prepayments, S AFER FOE - EAhFEURGRTE K
other receivables and other assets HBEENTREE 29,487
Pledged deposits BEHEBIFHR 69,659
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRREFEY 345,188
638,993
Financial liabilities THIEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
b8 £ [N
STEM
TRBE
RMB’000
ARBET T
Trade payables BT E 508 113,326
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 5t A K EN B L ETBE NS REE 49,915
Financial liabilities included in other long term liabilites ~ A EMEHEEN S RAE 133,000
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERIT REMERK 1,030,724
1,326,965
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 = E— A F+-_A=+—H

33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

34

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

There were no transfers of fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, pledged deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors review

BV.EMIENAIFERATFE

34

EREE

EREDHEGEVBHRRMERAEEAR
SEeRMTANATEEAKREERES  *
ZhihE TAMDIBF R -

BHE_Z-NAF+A=+—RHILFE 2
FEAEZELEER -

B EEE B R RBR

AEENT2ER T ARG RRTREM
BR CERERARRERREEEY -
ZETMTIANTIEZANRAANEENEE
ERET - AEBEFEZREKBEEKLEE
EEMHEMCEREERAE  WERKESK
18 R E A R WK IR A R B B 5 5R0R K E A
JEA A -

AEESRTAELENTZRRSINERR
ERRRERBERR - EERAMETE

and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are BERIBREMMKE  BEHMERRNT -
summarised below.
Foreign currency risk HNEE | B

The Group is exposed to the foreign currency risk mainly arising from
changes in the exchange rate of USD against RMB. The Group has
not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk based on the consideration
that the foreign currency transactions are not significant to the Group.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MEREEEZERBR@®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) HINKE | B ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRETEMBEMESEIZTENBRT -
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the USD NEEBRBRBRIANE(REEEELNEBENAT
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s EEHMES) ARAEEERENRERR
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets ETERAGEEHIEN A B EHHEHKE -

and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit
currency before tax
rate and equity
RRBEAT

ShE=R B RS
LA (TR #i/ (Rd)

% RMB’000
% ARBEFIT
2019 —EB-hE
If USD weakens against RMB WMETHARKEE
If USD strengthens against RMB WMETHAREHE
2018 —E-NF
If USD weakens against RMB WMETHARKEE (5) (3,334)
If USD strengthens against RMB WETHAREAE 5 3,334
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. BiEREEEERBEEK @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk 15 AR R
Maximum exposure RARE
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure TREATENRAEBEERRNEELEER
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly SAEERR  ZEEREFEIZEENBED
based on past due information unless other information is available FEAE R (BRIEFETNZLEE NN ERK A
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at BHEIRESHNEMER B SE R AR
31 December 2019. The amounts presented are gross carrying E-NE+_A=1+t—HHNELEESHE-
amounts for financial assets. 2P eEATRIEENRMAMBE -
As at 31 December 2019 N-—ZE-hE+=-B=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A B 5
EEER 2HBEHEERE
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach

F1RR  EolE  HI®R  fE%
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARMTR ARETR AR®TRT AR%TR

Trade receivables* FEU B 5 5R0E - 254,811 254,811
Financial assets included in FEATERFIE - HAbER

prepayments, other receivables REREMEER

and other assets CRIEE

— Normal** — —f~ 41,893 41,893
Pledged deposits [REEEEEEN

— Not yet past due — KA 67,039 67,039
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY

— Not yet past due — KRB 410,107 410,107

519,039 254,811 773,850
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

bt 265 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

BEREEEERBRw®

1= A &b (@)
B AR (&)
—E-NFE+=ZH=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A TEH]
EEER 2HEHEESE
Simpilified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach
E1kEE  Fole  FIBBR  BlkAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETR
Trade receivables* FEUE 5 FRIE * - - - 194,659 194,659
Financial assets included in S AFERFRIE - EAth FE UL
prepayments, other receivables HIENMEMEERN
and other assets CRIEE
— Normal** - — & 29,487 - - - 29,487
Pledged deposits BHEBIFH
— Not yet past due — R HA 69,659 - - - 69,659
Cash and cash equivalents ReREeEEY
— Not yet past due — RiEH] 345,188 - - - 345,188
444,334 - - 194,659 638,993
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * FAEEFRRETMRABEECTENERE S

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
o The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

HEME @ ARBHEENERREETH
MERMFEATIRE -

o FEATENFOR - HEUGRIAE R EMEEN
CREAENEEEEERIBHHRRA/IE
B YEANBTRAVNGEIREESRE
EMERRERBREEM -

ZEMBEARLAR —T-NFFR
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. HEERBREEEERBER @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk B [ i
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents A& E E’]BZ RAERBAKHNE SRR EE
and have available funding through capital contribution and bank ) WiEBEFERRITERRNEES °
loans.
The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting RIMERR SRABEEDSFTAERERM
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as REEIERE AT
follows:
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-hE+=ZA=+—H
On  Less than 3to 1to5 Over
demand 3 months 12 months years 5years Total
=@AZE
REXRK =EAR +=8 —EZLfE AENE st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETRT ARBTR ARETR

Trade payables ERE 5508
Lease liabilities HERE
Financial liabilities included &+ A E- Al fE 7R IE
in other payables and fEFTIEE K
accruals THREE
Due to the ultimate holding & AR IZERR A
company B
Financial liabilities included 5t AZ i REFE EH
in other long term THREE
liabilities 139,517 139,517
Interest-bearing bank and &t 4817 R E M A&
other borrowings (TeEHREa’)
(excluding lease liabilities) 466,540 y 325,917 109,453 1,046,366

527,869 . 326,605 251,154 . 1,351,811
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

bt 265 e % Bt (%)

31 December 2019 —E—- A F+-F=+—H

M. HEEBEEEERBEE@®

Liquidity risk (Continued) BN R B ()
At 31 December 2018 R-—ZE—-NE+=ZA=+—H
Less than 3to 1t05 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=Y EPSES
REKE =EAR +=ZEA —FzafF REHE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Trade payables BB SHIE 36,078 77,248 - - - 113,326
Financial liabilities included &+ A A fE R FR B
in other payables and EFBENERARE
accruals - 49,915 - - - 49,915
Financial liabilities included st AE i REFE EH
in other long term =
liabilities - - - 83,000 51,463 134,463
Interest-bearing bank and &t 84817 R EfhfE
other borrowings 660,920 12,236 270,985 105,943 - 1,050,084
696,998 139,399 270,985 188,943 51,463 1,347,788
Note: As at 31 December 2019, interest-bearing bank borrowings in the M RZT—NAF+ZA=+—8 5 28BTE

amount of RMB466,540,000 (2018: RMB660,920,000) were not in
compliance with certain loan covenants and the respective cash loans
would become callable, and therefore, for the purpose of the above
maturity profile, the amounts are classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that the
loans will be called in their entirety any time before the maturity, and
they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the
maturity dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was
made considering: the financial position of the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants, the
lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the terms
of the loans, the contractual undiscounted payments as at 31
December 2019 are as follows:

KARK 466,540,000 (ZZ—N\F : AR
¥ 660,920,000 7C) T & & T EHRH + 18
BIRSERETAELE - Fitk - 5t L5 H
RRME - BREESHEES A [REXRE] -

BEE LG ERXTRAEHRERS
REIBARTERSEERSEE  XRAEH
EFRBREBEEFHETRENIHAEE -
AEBERE B THIBEREELRTGE - A&
BIRHEHRNI BN AEBEHEHR
MEOARBR  RZBOEMHARKEE T
BERBTREMREERELNER - R
BRERES  R=_F-NF+-A=t—H
B RTKARBIBNA AT

ZEMBEARLAR —T-NFFR
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. UERREEEERBE®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BN R B ()
Note: (Continued) PiaE - (48D

At 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-hE+=-A=+—H

Less than 3to 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5years Total
=@ARZE
RERE ZEAR +=EA —FZRF EENE Mzt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Interest-bearing bank and 5t 88817 R EME
other borrowings 215,069 734,941 109,453 1,059,463

At 31 December 2018 R=ZE—-NE+=-A=+—H

Less than 3to 1t05 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=ARE

RERE =EAR +Z@A —FZRF AFHUE 5t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT  ARBETRT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank and 5+ 8 R1T L EMER
other borrowings - 82,219 795,617 195,120 - 1,072,856
Capital management EREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEEEAEENTERZABRAEER
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to BIREEENUNBEERNERLL R L

168

maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by net debt plus total equity. Net debt includes trade
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and other long term liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

M. HEEBEEEERBEE@®

Capital management (Continued) BEAREE @)
Group AEE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®EFTT
Trade payables FERNE 5 R0E 78,587 113,326
Other payables and accruals E b FRIE M FEET IR B 269,938 147,743
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings AT ERTT R EMIERK 1,024,814 1,030,724
Other long term liabilities EmRHARE 136,948 137,046
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReRIREEEY (410,107) (345,188)
Net debt FEE 1,100,180 1,083,651
Total equity R 2,360,974 2,203,930
Net debt and total equity TFER MRS 3,461,154 3,287,581
Gearing ratio EARBELE 31.8% 33.0%

35. CONTINGENCIES 35. HAREIE

RZE-NF+ZARB AR EE
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited
(TR&EDM(EFPEFE) AR - RELLEE
K Key Shine (fER#EE) FHHa AR ESR - 12
& Key Shine MR ETRAEAEEERBHA(E
AR ARQ B EE K E AR 2 E IR IR H1 &9
BT HE((ZFR]) o ZFDRRFEHNAE
ARRHA=ZE—NE+ A+ BHAM -

On 6 December 2019, the Company received a writ of summons by
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited (the “Plaintiff’) against,
among others, the Company, Mr. Chen Weizhong and Key Shine as
defendants, on the ground that Key Shine and Mr. Chen Weizhong
have been in breach of certain agreements in relation to, among
others, the operation of the Company and restrictions on disposal of
shares in the Company (the “Litigation”). Details of the Litigation
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16
December 2019.

MR AREEZEFBRIEHURERENES
15 XEEE(EREE) AARLIFSIK
ZRBEOBRNFTLTT - B AR AR L AR
REZFDGHAEEEL R K EEEKE
MERNMEE - &M ERZFRRLD
ERRE (HREER R EMRARRSIN) GHRE
e

Subject to receipt of further evidences or details of claim from the
Plaintiff; and after having taken into account, amongst other factors,
the fact that the Company is not a party to the agreements leading to
the Litigation, the Company does not consider that the Litigation will
have any material adverse impact on the business and/or operations
of the Group and accordingly have not made any provision for any
claim arising from the Litigation, other than the related legal and other
costs.
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36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 36. REHAEEE

170

37

PERIOD

Impact of new coronavirus pneumonia epidemic

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) since January
2020 in Mainland China have brought disruptions to the Group’s
operation. The consequential precautionary and control measures
released by the local government and authorities have temporarily
stunt the logistics activities across the country which has once
stagnated the Group’s supply chain and delivery.

The Group’s production has been resumed from February 2020. And
the extent of epidemic prevention and control measures have been
gradually released responding to the request from the local
government. However, given the dynamic nature of the
circumstances and the uncertainty of the duration of the epidemic
and the situation of epidemic preventive measures, up to the date of
the report, the assessment of the related impact on the Group is still
in progress.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements were
not restated and continued to be reported under the requirements of
the previous standard, IAS 17, and related interpretations.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 38. 7~ A 5] WY B B AR R 3R
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company RIPERAKR - B R BB R AKX ER
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: s
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Investment in a subsidiary KRB RARRIRE -
CURRENT ASSETS REEE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — F813/18 - #&e & HAb EU /1B 149
Due from a subsidiary e — M B~ B3R 897,335 897,961
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 178 4,671
Total current assets MEEERE 898,199 902,781
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE

Other payables and accruals HithETFRIE R FERTIEE 727 1,065
Due to the ultimate holding company ARp= St NI S 19,341 -
Total current liabilities e R EHR A 20,068 1,065
NET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS #BIEEFENREEFE 878,131 901,716
EQUITY e

Share capital f& 7 1,767 1,767
Reserves (note) G 876,364 899,949
Total equity miEsE 878,131 901,716

Less than one thousand.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 38. A< A B Y B TR 2R (a0
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: BisE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAREEBRENT :
Share Exchange
premium fluctuation Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
BRER EXRBRE HEtEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—NF—HF—H 934,688 42,079 (78,811) 897,956
Total comprehensive income for FRERAE WAL

the year - 41,625 (1,913) 39,612
2017 final dividend declared BER-ZT—tFRHARE (37,619) - - (37,619)
At 31 December 2018 and R-B-NE+-_A=+—8

1 January 2019 E=FE—-NF—HA—H 897,069 83,604 (80,724) 899,949
Total comprehensive income FRREWALREE

for the year - 19,832 (2,904) 16,928
2018 final dividend declared BEER=-ZT—/\FRHARL (40,513) - - (40,513)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—AH 856,556 103,436 (83,628) 876,364

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 39. #t A B &K

STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised EFSCR T -TF A A+ B RIEE T
for issue by the board of directors on 15 May 2020. fREMBRE
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